
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Daljit Lally, Chief Executive 

County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF 
T: 0345 600 6400 

www.northumberland.gov.uk 
  

    
 

 Your ref:  
Our ref:  
Enquiries to: Nichola Turnbull 
Email: nichola.turnbull@northumberland.gov.uk 
Tel direct: 01670 622617 
Date: Monday, 4 July 2022 

 
 

 PLEASE NOTE ITEMS 1 - 7 WILL BE CONSIDERED AT 4.00 P.M. 
 ITEMS 8 - 15 WILL BE CONSIDERED EITHER BEGINNING AT 6.00 P.M. OR ON THE 

CONCLUSION OF THE CONSIDERATION OF THE PLANNING APPLICATION, 
WHICHEVER IS THE LATER 

 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 

 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the TYNEDALE LOCAL AREA COUNCIL to be 
held in the CEREMONY ROOM - HEXHAM HOUSE, Gilesgate, Hexham, Northumberland, 
NE46 3NH on TUESDAY, 12 JULY 2022 at 4.00 PM.  

Yours faithfully 

 

 
Daljit Lally 
Chief Executive 
 

 

To Tynedale Local Area Council members as follows:- 

T Cessford (Chair), D Kennedy (Vice-Chair), A Scott (Vice-Chair (Planning)), A Dale, 
S Fairless-Aitken, C Horncastle, JI Hutchinson, N Morphet, N Oliver, J Riddle, A Sharp, 
G Stewart and H Waddell 

Public Document Pack



 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 12 July 2022 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
 

It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda 
will be dealt with in public. 

 
 

1.   PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED AT PLANNING MEETINGS 
 

(Pages 1 
- 2) 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

3.   MINUTES 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the Tynedale Local Area Council, held on 14 
June 2022, as circulated, to be confirmed as a true record and signed by 
the Chair. 
 

(Pages 3 
- 8) 

4.   DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 
 
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests, 
members are required where a matter arises at a meeting;    
 
a. Which directly relates to Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (‘DPI’) as set 

out in Appendix B, Table 1 of the Code of Conduct, to disclose the 
interest, not participate in any discussion or vote and not to remain in 
room. Where members have a DPI or if the matter concerns an 
executive function and is being considered by a Cabinet Member with 
a DPI they must notify the Monitoring Officer and arrange for 
somebody else to deal with the matter.   
 

b. Which directly relates to the financial interest or well being of a Other 
Registrable Interest as set out in Appendix B, Table 2 of the Code of 
Conduct to disclose the interest and only speak on the matter if 
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but 
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter 
and must not remain the room. 

 
c. Which directly relates to their financial interest or well-being  (and is 

not  DPI) or the financial well being of a relative or close associate, to 
declare the interest and members may only speak on the matter if 
members of the public are also allowed to speak. Otherwise, the 
member must not take part in discussion or vote on the matter and 
must leave the room.  

 
d. Which affects the financial well-being of the member, a relative or 

close associate or a body included under the Other Registrable 
Interests column in Table 2, to disclose the interest and apply the test 
set out at paragraph 9 of Appendix B before deciding whether they 
may remain in the meeting. 

 
e. Where Members have or a Cabinet Member has an Other Registerable 

 



 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 12 July 2022 

Interest or Non Registerable Interest in a matter being considered in 
exercise of their executive function, they must notify the Monitoring 
Officer and arrange for somebody else to deal with it.    

 
NB Any member needing clarification must contact 
monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk.  Members are referred to the 
Code of Conduct which contains the matters above in full. Please refer to 
the guidance on disclosures at the rear of this agenda letter. 
 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
 
5.   DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 
To request the committee to decide the planning applications attached to 
this report using the powers delegated to it.  
 
Please note that printed letters of objection/support are no longer circulated 
with the agenda but are available on the Council’s website at 
http://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Planning.aspx  
 

(Pages 9 
- 12) 

6.   21/03415/FUL 
 
Construction of 44no. homes (Use Class C3) and 20no. apartments (Use 
Class C2) including associated access, landscaping and infrastructure 
(amended description) 
Former Bellingham Auction Mart, Bellingham, Northumberland 
 

(Pages 
13 - 52) 

7.   PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE 
 
For Members’ information to report the progress of planning appeals.  This 
is a monthly report and relates to appeals throughout all 5 Local Area 
Council Planning Committee areas and covers appeals of Strategic 
Planning Committee. 
 

(Pages 
53 - 62) 

LOCAL AREA COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
8.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

 
To reply to any questions received from members of the public which have 
been submitted in writing in advance of the meeting.  Questions can be 
asked about issues for which the Council has a responsibility.  (Public 
question times take place on a bimonthly basis at Local Area Council 
meetings: in January, March, May, July, September and November each 
year.) 
 
As agreed by the County Council in February 2012, the management of 
local public question times is at the discretion of the Chair of the 
committee. 
 
Please note however that a question may possibly be rejected if it requires 
the disclosure of any categories of confidential or exempt information, 
namely information: 

 

mailto:monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk
http://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Planning.aspx


 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 12 July 2022 

 
1. relating to any individual; 
2. which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual; 
3. relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person; 
4. relating to any labour relations matters/negotiations; 
5. restricted to legal proceedings; 
6. about enforcement/enacting legal orders; 
7. relating to the prevention, investigation of prosecution of crime. 
 
And/or: 
 
• is defamatory, frivolous or offensive; 
• it is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a 

meeting of this or another County Council committee in the past six 
months; 

• the request repeats an identical or very similar question from the 
same person; 

• the cost of providing an answer is disproportionate; 
• it is being separately addressed through the Council's complaints 

process; 
• it is not about a matter for which the Council has a responsibility or 

which affects the county; 
• it relates to planning, licensing and/or other regulatory applications; 
• it is a question that town/parish councils would normally be expected 

to raise through other channels. 
 
If the Chair is of the opinion that a question is one which, for whatever 
reason, cannot properly be asked in an area meeting, he/she will disallow it 
and inform the resident of his/her decision. 
 
Copies of any written answers (without individuals' personal contact 
details) will be provided for members after the meeting and also be publicly 
available. 
 
Democratic Services will confirm the status of the progress on any 
previously requested written answers and follow up any related actions 
requested by the Local Area Council. 
 

9.   PETITIONS 
 
This item is to:  
 

a) Receive any new petitions: to receive any new petitions.  The lead 
petitioner is entitled to briefly introduce their petition by providing a 
statement in writing, and a response to any petitions received will 
then be organised for a future meeting; 
 
i) Wentworth Car Park & Hexham Alemouth Road Car Park, 

Hexham  
 
To report that a new e-petition has been opened on the Council’s 
website. 

 



 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 12 July 2022 

 
b) Consider reports on petitions previously received: (none) 

 
c) Receive any updates on petitions for which a report was 

previously considered: any updates will be verbally reported at the 
meeting. 

 
10.   LOCAL SERVICES ISSUES 

 
To receive a verbal update from the Area Managers from Technical 
Services and Neighbourhood Services in attendance about any key recent, 
ongoing and/or future planned Local Services work for the attention of 
members of the Local Area Council, who will also then have the 
opportunity to raise issues with the Area Managers. 
 
The Area Managers have principal responsibility for highway services and 
environmental services, such as refuse collection, street cleansing and 
grounds maintenance, within the geographic boundaries of the Local Area 
Council. 
 

 

11.   BROADBAND UPDATE 
 
Gillian Cowell, Business and Community Engagement Officer, 
iNorthumberland Programme, will be in attendance to give an update and 
answer questions about Broadband in the Tynedale area. 
 

 

12.   MEMBERS LOCAL IMPROVEMENT SCHEMES - PROGRESS REPORT 
 
The Members Local Improvement Schemes for Tynedale Local Area 
Council are provided for information only. 
 

(Pages 
63 - 92) 

13.   LOCAL AREA COUNCIL WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To note the latest version of agreed items for future Local Area Council 
meetings (any suggestions for new agenda items will require confirmation 
by the Business Chair after the meeting). 
 

(Pages 
93 - 100) 

14.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting (planning only) will be held on Tuesday, 9 August 2022. 
 

 

15.   URGENT BUSINESS 
 
To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair, should, by 
reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency. 
 

 



 

Tynedale Local Area Council, Tuesday, 12 July 2022 

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE: 
  

● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussed or as soon as it 
becomes apparent to you. 

● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.  

 

Name:   Date of meeting:  

Meeting:  

Item to which your interest relates: 

 

Nature of Interest i.e. either disclosable pecuniary interest (as defined by Table 1 of Appendix B to 
the Code of Conduct, Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest (as defined by 
Appendix B to Code of Conduct) (please give details):  

 

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting?  
 

Yes - ☐ No - ☐ 

 

 



 

Tynedale Local Area Council, Tuesday, 12 July 2022 

Registering Interests 
 
Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must register 
with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 1 (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register details of your other personal interests which fall 
within the categories set out in Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests). 
 
“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of 
your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below. 
 
"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or 
a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 
 
1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28 days of becoming 

aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer. 

 
2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the councillor, or a person 

connected with the councillor, being subject to violence or intimidation. 

 
3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with the reasons why 

you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees they will withhold the interest 
from the public register. 

 

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 

 
4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable Pecuniary 

Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or 
vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If 
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an 
interest. 

 
Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a 
matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is being 
considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the 
Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart 
from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 

 

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 

 
6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or wellbeing of 

one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You 

may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but 

otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the 

room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to 

disclose the nature of the interest. 

 

Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests 

 



 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 12 July 2022 

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being 
(and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a financial interest or well-being of 
a relative or close associate, you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if 
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in 
any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted 
a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

 
a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate; or 

c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as set 
out in Table 2 you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain 
in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied 

 
9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects the financial interest or well- being: 

 

a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants of the 
ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would affect 
your view of the wider public interest  

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting. Otherwise, you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and 
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.  
 
If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
10. Where you have an Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest on a matter to be 

considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive 
function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further 
steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 



 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 12 July 2022 

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012.  

 Subject  Description  

Employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation  

Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain.  

[Any unpaid directorship.]  

Sponsorship  

  

  

  

  

Any payment or provision of any other financial 
benefit (other than from the council) made to 
the councillor during the previous 12-month 
period for expenses incurred by him/her in 
carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or 
towards his/her election expenses.  

This includes any payment or financial benefit 
from a trade union within the meaning of the 
Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  

Contracts  Any contract made between the councillor or 
his/her spouse or civil partner or the person 
with whom the councillor is living as if they 
were spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which 
such person is a partner, or an incorporated 
body of which such person is a director* or a 
body that such person has a beneficial interest 
in the securities of*) and the council —  

a. under which goods or services are to 
be provided or works are to be 
executed; and  

b. which has not been fully discharged.  

Land and Property  Any beneficial interest in land which is within 
the area of the council.  

‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, 
interest or right in or over land which does not 
give the councillor or his/her spouse or civil 
partner or the person with whom the councillor 
is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners 
(alone or jointly with another) a right to occupy 
or to receive income.  

Licenses  Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer  

Corporate tenancies  Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s 
knowledge) —  

a. the landlord is the council; and  

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made


 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 12 July 2022 

b. the tenant is a body that the councillor, 
or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is 
living as if they were spouses/ civil 
partners is a partner of or a director* of 
or has a beneficial interest in the 
securities* of.  

Securities  Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body 
where—  

a. that body (to the councillor’s 
knowledge) has a place of business or 
land in the area of the council; and  

b. either —  

i. the total nominal value of the 
securities* exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or   

ii. if the share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in 
which the councillor, or his/ her spouse 
or civil partner or the person with whom 
the councillor is living as if they were 
spouses/civil partners has a beneficial 
interest exceeds one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that class.  

  

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident 
society.  

 * ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective 
investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other 
securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building society.  

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests 

 

You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is 
likely to affect: 

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are 
nominated or appointed by your authority 

b) any body 

i. exercising functions of a public nature 

ii. any body directed to charitable purposes or 

iii. one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or 
policy (including any political party or trade union) 



 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 

PROCEDURE AT PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 

A Welcome from Chairman to members and those members of the public watching on the 

livestream 

Welcome to also include reference to 

(i) Fact that meeting is being held in a Covid safe environment and available to view on a 

live stream through You Tube Northumberland TV 

(ii) Members are asked to keep microphones on mute unless speaking 

 

B Attendance / Apologies of members 

(i) Democratic Services Officer (DSO) to announce and record any apologies received. 

 

C Minutes of previous meeting and Disclosure of Members’ Interests 

D Development Control 

 

APPLICATION 

Chair 

Introduces application 

Site Visit Video (previously circulated) - invite members questions 

Planning Officer 

Updates – Changes to recommendations – present report 

 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



Public Speaking 

Objector(s) (up to 5 mins) 

Local member (up to 5 mins)/ parish councillor (up to 5 mins) 

Applicant/Supporter (up to 5 mins) 

NO QUESTIONS IN RELATION TO WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS OR OF/BY LOCAL COUNCILLOR 

 

Committee members’ questions to Planning Officers 

Chairman to respond to raised hands of members as to whether they have any questions of the 

Planning Officers 

 

Debate (Rules) 

Proposal 

Seconded 

DEBATE 

 

Again Chairman to respond to raised hand of members as to whether they wish to 

participate in the debate 

● No speeches until proposal seconded 

● Speech may not exceed 6 minutes 

● Amendments to Motions 

● Approve/Refuse/Defer 

 

Vote (by majority or Chair’s casting vote) 

(i) Planning Officer confirms and reads out wording of resolution 

(ii) Legal officer should then record the vote FOR/AGAINST/ABSTAIN (reminding members 

that they should abstain where they have not heard all of the consideration of the 

application) 

Page 2



Ch.’s Initials……… 
 

 1 

NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

TYNEDALE LOCAL AREA COUNCIL 
 
At a meeting of the Tynedale Local Area Council held at County Hall, Morpeth on 
Tuesday, 14 June 2022 at 4.00 p.m. 

 
PRESENT 

 
Councillor T Cessford 

(Chair, in the Chair for agenda items 18 – 21 and 24) 
 

(Planning Vice-Chair Councillor A Scott in the chair for items 22 - 23) 
 

MEMBERS 
 

A Dale N Oliver (23-24) 
C Horncastle A Sharp (18-22) 
I Hutchinson G Stewart (23-24) 
D Kennedy (23-24) HR Waddell 
N Morphet  

 
OFFICERS 

 
A Bell Definitive Map Officer 
M Bulman Solicitor 
N Turnbull Democratic Services Officer 

 
 

1 member of the public and 1 member of the press were present. 
 
 

18. MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
The Membership and Terms of Reference, as agreed by Council at the 
meeting on 4 May 2022, had been circulated for information.  
 
RESOLVED that the that the Local Area Council’s membership and terms of 
reference, as agreed by Council on 4 May 2022, be noted.  
 
 

19. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Fairless-Aitken and 
Riddle. 
 
 

  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 14 June 2022 2 

20.  MINUTES 
 
Minute No. 5 
21/03959/FUL  
Resubmission: Erection of rural worker's dwelling  
Land South of Woodside Cottage, Bardon Mill, Northumberland 
 
The typographical error in the first paragraph on page 4 should be amended to 
read “Mr Furlong, the applicant….” to replace the reference to Mr Ferguson. 
 
It was noted that there had been a lengthy agenda at the previous meeting 
which had resulted in some attendees being unable to use public transport to 
return home.  The Chair agreed that the number of agenda items at future 
meetings would be carefully monitored.  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of Tynedale Local Area Council 
held on 10 May 2022, as circulated, be confirmed as a true record and signed 
by the Chair, subject to the above amendment. 
 
 

21.  DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS’ INTERESTS 
 
Councillor Sharp declared an interest in agenda item no. 6 ‘Review of the 
Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way, Alleged Restricted 
Byway No. 62, Parish of West Allen’ as he was employed by the company who 
represented the landowner, and would leave the room whilst the item was 
discussed. 
 
RIGHTS OF WAY 
 
Councillor Cessford then vacated the Chair, for Planning Vice-Chair 
Councillor Scott to chair the development control section of the agenda, 
as was the arrangement for all Local Area Councils. 
 
It was confirmed that as Councillors Kennedy, Oliver and Stewart had arrived 
after the presentation had commenced on the following item, they would not 
be able to participate in the decision. 
 

22. REVIEW OF THE DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF 
WAY   
ALLEGED RESTRICTED BYWAY NO. 62   
PARISH OF BARDON MILL  
 
Alex Bell, Definitive Map Officer, introduced the report in which the Local Area 
Council was asked to give consideration to all the relevant evidence gathered 
in support and rebuttal of the existence of restricted byway rights over a route 
(the majority of which is identified as the U7044 road on the Council’s List of 
Streets) from the B6318 road, south-west of Housesteads, in a general 
northerly then north-easterly direction to a point south-east of East Hotbank.  
(A copy of the report is enclosed with the minutes).  

Page 4



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 14 June 2022 3 

 
A detailed presentation was given which summarised the evidence. 
The following information was provided in response to questions: 
 
 The majority of the land was owned by the National Trust who had not 

responded to the consultation. 
 Gates should not be locked on routes where there was a public right of way 

but was likely to be in response to unauthorised use by motor vehicles.  
Following determination of the process, this would be revisited by officers. 

 There was an unofficial diversion near point P through a field gate which 
officers hoped would be resolved with a pragmatic and sensible approach. 

 Further investigations would be held in due course when resources 
permitted eastwards and northwards of point Q.  It had been more of a 
priority to resolve the status of this section of the route due to the use by 
unauthorised motor vehicles.  Under the NERC Act 2006, private motor 
vehicular rights would be retained for those requiring it at East Hotbank. 

 The Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way makes no 
reference to maintenance of roads, this was the function of the Council’s 
List of Streets.  Responsibility for road maintenance had been passed to the 
County Council from rural district councils by the Local Government Act 
1929. 

 
Councillor Sharp moved acceptance of the recommendations set out in the 
report which was seconded by Councillor Morphet.  
 
Upon being put to the vote 8 members voted in favour.  
 
RESOLVED that the Local Area Council agreed that: 
 
i) There is sufficient evidence to indicate that public vehicular rights have 

been reasonably alleged to exist over the route S-X-R-P-Q. 
ii) The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 would appear 

to have extinguished the public’s motorised vehicular rights over the S-X 
part of the route. 

iii) By virtue of common law (Kotegaonkar v. SoS for EFRA [1021]) the 
public’s motorised vehicular rights would also appear to have been 
extinguished over the X-R-P-Q part of the route. 

iv) The whole route be included in a future Definitive Map Modification Order 
as a restricted byway. 

 
Councillor Sharp, having previously declared an interest in the following item, left the 
meeting.  

 
23. REVIEW OF THE DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF 

WAY   
ALLEGED RESTRICTED BYWAY NO. 62  
PARISH OF WEST ALLEN   
 
Alex Bell, Definitive Map Officer, introduced the report in which the Local Area 
Council was asked to give consideration to all the relevant evidence gathered 

Page 5



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 14 June 2022 4 

in support and rebuttal of the existence of restricted byway rights over the 
route of existing Public Footpath No. 26, from the Cumbria County boundary at 
Blacklaw Cross, in a general northerly direction, to existing Byway Open to All 
Traffic No. 37, at Keirsleywell Bank.  (A copy of the report is enclosed with the 
minutes).  
 
The Definitive Map Officer gave a detailed summary of the background which 
included appeals for two previous applications over the status of the route and 
outlined the additional evidence which had been submitted with this 
application. 
 
He provided the following information in response to questions from Members: 
 
 Whilst it could sometimes be inferred that a route would cross county 

boundaries with the same status, the evidence did not suggest that this was 
the position in this case. 

 A decision needed to be made on the evidence provided to the committee. 
If the application was rejected this could be subject of an appeal to the 
Secretary of State by the applicant.  If the route is included in a future 
Definitive Map Modification Order (whether as either restricted byway, or 
bridleway) either the landowner or the applicant could object, which would 
lead to the Order and the objections being submitted to the Secretary of 
State for determination. 

 The position of bridleway had not been addressed by the Rights of Way 
Inspectors in either of the previous decisions in 2004 or 2018. 

 
Councillor Hutchinson moved acceptance of the recommendation set out in 
the report which was seconded by Councillor Horncastle.  
 
Upon being put to the vote 10 members voted in favour.  
 
RESOLVED that the Local Area Council agreed that: 
 
i) There is still insufficient evidence to indicate, on a balance of 

probabilities, that public vehicular rights have been shown to exist over 
the route A-B. 

ii) There is sufficient evidence to indicate, on a balance of probabilities, that 
public bridleway rights have been shown to exist over the route A-B. 

iii) The route be included in a future Definitive Map Modification Order as a 
public bridleway. 

 
 
On the conclusion of the Rights of Way business Councillor Scott 
vacated the Chair.  Councillor Cessford returned to the Chair for the 
remainder of the meeting. 
 
 

24. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting would be held on Tuesday 12 July 2022 at 4.00 p.m. 
 

Page 6



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 14 June 2022 5 

 
 
 

CHAIR _______________________ 
 
DATE _______________________ 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
1 

 
TYNEDALE LOCAL AREA COUNCIL 

 
12 JULY 2022 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 
DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 

Report of the Interim Executive Director of Planning and Local Services 

Cabinet Member: Councillor CW Horncastle 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 

Purpose of report 
 
To request the Local Area Council to decide the planning applications attached to 

this report using the powers delegated to it. 
 

Recommendations 
 
The Local Area Council is recommended to consider the attached planning 

applications and decide them in accordance with the individual 
recommendations, also taking into account the advice contained in the 

covering report. 
 
Key issues 

 
Each application has its own particular set of individual issues and considerations 

that must be taken into account when determining the application.  These are set out 
in the individual reports contained in the next section of this agenda. 
 

DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 

Introduction 
 
1. The following section of the agenda consists of planning applications to be 

determined by the Tynedale Local Area Council in accordance with the current 
delegation arrangements.  Any further information, observations or letters 

relating to any of the applications contained in this agenda and received after 
the date of publication of this report will be reported at the meeting. 

 

The Determination of Planning and Other Applications 
 

2. In considering the planning and other applications, members are advised to 
take into account the following general principles: 

 

● Decision makers are to have regard to the development plan, so far as it is 
material to the application 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 
 

 

2 

● Applications are to be determined in accordance with the developmen t plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise 

● Applications should always be determined on their planning merits in the 
light of all material considerations 

● Members are reminded that recommendations in favour of giving permission 
must be accompanied by suitable conditions and a justification for giving 
permission, and that refusals of permission must be supported by clear 

planning reasons both of which are defensible on appeal 
● Where the Local Area Council is minded to determine an application other 

than in accordance with the Officer’s recommendation, clear reasons should 
be given that can be minuted, and appropriate conditions or refusal reasons 
put forward 

 
3. Planning conditions must meet 6 tests that are set down in paragraph 206 of 

the NPPF and reflected in National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG, March 
2014 as amended). They must be: 

 

● Necessary 
● Relevant to planning 

● Relevant to the development permitted 
● Enforceable 
● Precise 

● Reasonable in all other respects 
 

4. Where councillors are contemplating moving a decision contrary to officer 
advice, they are recommended to consider seeking advice from senior officers 
as to what constitutes material planning considerations, and as to what might 

be appropriate conditions or reasons for refusal. 
 

5. Attached as Appendix 1 is the procedure to be followed at all Local Area 
Councils. 

 

Important Copyright Notice 
 

6 The maps used are reproduced from the Ordnance Survey maps with the 
permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery office, Crown Copyright 
reserved. 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
These are listed at the end of the individual application reports. 
 

IMPLICATIONS ARISING OUT OF THE REPORT  
   

Policy: Procedures and individual recommendations are 
in line with policy unless otherwise stated 

 

Finance and value for None unless stated 
Money: 

 

Page 10



 
 

 

3 

Human Resources: None 
 

Property: None 
 

Equalities: None 
 
Risk Assessment: None 

 
Sustainability: Each application will have an impact on the local 

environment and it has been assessed accordingly 
 
Crime and Disorder: As set out in the individual reports 

 
Customer Considerations: None 

 
Consultations: As set out in the individual reports 
 

Wards:  All 
 

 
 
Report author Rob Murfin 

Report of the Interim Executive Director of Planning and Local 
Services 01670 622542 

Rob.Murfin@northumberland.gov.uk 
  

Page 11



 
 

 

4 

APPENDIX 1: PROCEDURE AT PLANNING COMMITTEES 
 

Chair 
 

Introduces application 
 
 

Planning Officer 
 

Updates – Changes to Recommendations – present report 
 
 

Public Speaking 
 

Objector(s) (5mins) 
 

Local Councillor/Parish Councillor (5 mins) 

 
Applicant / Supporter (5 mins)  

 
NO QUESTIONS ALLOWED TO/ BY PUBLIC SPEAKERS 

 

 
 

Member’s Questions to Planning Officers 
 
 

 
Rules of Debate 

 

Proposal 

Seconded 

DEBATE 

● No speeches until motion is seconded 
● Speech may not exceed 6 minutes 

● Amendments to Motions 
● Approve/ refuse/ defer 

 

 
 

Vote (by majority or Chair casting vote) 
 

Chair should read out resolution before voting 

Voting should be a clear show of hands. 

Page 12



 

  
 

 
 

 

 
Tynedale Local Area Council Planning Committee 

12 July 2022  
 

Application No: 21/03415/FUL  
Proposal: Construction of 44no. homes (Use Class C3) and 20no. apartments (Use 

Class C2) including associated access, landscaping and infrastructure 
(amended description)  

Site Address Former Bellingham Auction Mart, Bellingham, Northumberland   
Applicant: Maple Oak Living 

C/o Agent  

Agent: Mr Alastair Willis, Lichfields, 
The St Nicholas Building, St 
Nicholas Street, Newcastle 
Upon Tyne, NE1 1RF  

Ward Bellingham Parish Bellingham 
 

Valid Date: 25 August 2021 Expiry 
Date: 

29 July 2022 

Case Officer 
Details: 

Name:  Mr Neil Armstrong 

Job Title:  Principal Planning Officer 

Tel No:  01670 622697 

Email: neil.armstrong@northumberland.gov.uk 

 
Recommendation: That this application be REFUSED permission 
 

 
This material has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown 
Copyright (Not to Scale) 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

 
 
 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The application has been referred to the Director of Planning and Chair and 
Vice-Chair of the Tynedale Local Area Council Planning Committee under the 
Council’s delegation scheme due to objections received from Bellingham Parish 
Council and local residents. It was agreed that the application raises issues of 
strategic, wider community or significant County Council interest, and so should be 
considered by the Committee. 
 
2. Description of the Proposals 
 
2.1 Full planning permission is sought for the construction of 64 new homes on the 
site of the former Bellingham Auction Mart. An area to the northern boundary of the 
site is not included within the current proposals or application site area and is still being 
considered under a separate application for a retail store and associated works under 
planning application 21/03910/FUL. 
 
2.2 The application site is 1.86 hectare in area, is largely cleared and vacant, and 
is located close to the centre of Bellingham village. The B6320 highway, from where 
vehicular access is proposed, forms the northern boundary of the site with residential 
properties located beyond this, including at Fairshaw Crescent. The line of the former 
railway also features along the northern boundary of the site. The site is also bounded 
largely by existing residential development to the east, south and west, including some 
commercial development to the east and south-east within the centre of the village.  
 
2.3 A public right of way is located beyond the stone wall that forms the southern 
boundary of the site. There are no designated heritage assets immediately adjacent 
to the application site. However, there are several Grade II listed buildings in the 
locality to the south and south-east of the site, whilst the Hareshaw Ironworks 
scheduled monument is located around 165 metres to the east of the site. 
 
2.4 The application proposes an affordable-led housing development including a 
mix of affordable rent, rent to buy and shared ownership properties, as well as 
supported living apartments proposed within Use Class C2 (residential institutions). 
Grant funding has been secured from the North of Tyne Brownfield Housing Fund to 
assist in the delivery of the site. It is understood that Karbon Homes would take on the 
site and manage the new housing and apartments. The proposed housing mix of 64 
units overall would include 20 supported apartments and 44 new homes, and is broken 
down as follows: 
 

• 16 x 1-bed apartments 

• 4 x 2-bed apartments 
 

• 12 x 2-bed Tyneside flats 

• 15 x 2-bed bungalows 

• 10 x 2-bed houses 

• 7 x 3-bed houses 
 

Page 14



 

2.5 The applicant has amended the proposals following the original submission with 
the change of the apartment building to make provision for Use Class C2 provision 
with an increase from 16 to 20 units within this. This follows discussions with the 
Council’s housing officers and Adult Social Care, and new consultation was 
undertaken on those amendments.  
 
2.6 The applicant sets out that the C2 use would incorporate the provision of a safe, 
secure communal environment for residents requiring low levels of support and each 
property within the building will benefit from a direct warden call system. Additionally, 
Karbon have an onsite part-time scheme coordinator offering on site support and 
activities service to the residents.  The scheme coordinator undertakes a daily well-
being call and keeps a support plan on each tenant which is reviewed 6 monthly. The 
submitted plans show the apartments would comprise of self-contained facilities with 
kitchen/living area, bedroom and bathroom and the building would also feature an 
office and communal room at first floor level with a central lift. 
 
2.7 The application proposes two phases of development, which it is stated would 
comprise the following: 
 
Phase 1 
 

• 16 x 1-bed apartments (supported living) 

• 4 x 2-bed apartments (supported living) 

• 4 x 2-bed Tyneside flats (affordable rent) 

• 5 x 2-bed bungalows (older persons shared ownership) 

• 4 x 2-bed bungalows (affordable rent) 

• 3 x 2-bed houses (rent to buy) 

• 1 x 3-bed house (rent to buy) 
 
Phase 2 
 

• 8 x 2-bed Tyneside flats (affordable rent) 

• 6 x 2-bed bungalows (affordable rent) 

• 5 x 2-bed houses (affordable rent) 

• 2 x 2-bed houses (rent to buy) 

• 6 x 3-bed house (rent to buy) 
 
2.8 The application has also been subject to more recent amendments and the 
submission of further supporting information to address matters raised in relation to 
sustainability, layout, scale, design, highway safety and pedestrian connectivity, and 
viability.  
 
2.9 The site has previously had outline permission with reserved matters for a 
residential development of 65 dwellings with car parking and a children’s play area, as 
approved most recently under applications 20050571 and 20071304 respectively. 
However, it is understood that these approvals have not been implemented and there 
is currently no extant permission on the site. 
 
3. Planning History 
Reference Number: 21/03910/FUL 
Description: Construction of new convenience food retail store (Use Class E) with 
associated access, parking and landscaping 
Status: Pending consideration 

Page 15



 

 
Reference Number: T/20071309 
Description: Construction of 1 dwelling  
Status: Permitted 
 
Reference Number: T/20071304 
Description: Reserved matters - Application for the approval of those matters reserved 
by condition 1 of outline planning permission 20050571 for the construction of 65 
dwellings and construction of public car park and play area  
Status: Permitted 
 
Reference Number: T/20050571 
Description: Outline application for residential development  
Status: Permitted 
 
Reference Number: T/20050521 
Description: Construction of 57 dwellings and associated landscaping, open space 
provision, internal roads, construction of new access and car parking area  
Status: Withdrawn 
 
Reference Number: T/20041515 
Description: Construction of 75 dwellings and associated landscaping, open space 
provision, internal roads and construction of new access  
Status: Withdrawn 

4. Consultee Responses 
 

Bellingham Parish 
Council  

September 2021 
 
Key areas of concern: 
 

- No evidence regarding the number of social properties needed 
by this area 
- Plans for the housing for vulnerable people are vague 
- Very poor reputation with shared ownership properties in the 
area 
- Impact on facilities and services in the village, particularly the 
doctor’s surgery and paramedic facilities 
 
Other issues: 
 
- Require further details of the greenspace and ongoing 
maintenance 
- Would like consideration to be given to providing car parking 
for the village 
- Street lighting and impact on dark skies 
 Pedestrian access 
- Provision of electric vehicle charging points for each household 
- Management of housing for vulnerable individuals 
- Misleading information on extent of local facilities 
- Drainage and flood risk 
- Limited information on contributions to infrastructure and 
community facilities 

Page 16



 

- Limited information on sustainable design/renewables as part 
of development 
- Evidence for proposed housing mix 
- Noise impacts in relation to proposed new retail store and 
construction works for new housing 
- Welcome new tree planting 
- Transport Assessment 
- Concerns over extent of pre-application community 
involvement 
 
Overall  
 
As outlined, there are some real positives to the development 
and the PC appreciates the work that has gone into production 
of the planning documents. However the PC cannot support the 
proposals until the above points have been actioned and, in 
many cases, until more information about key issues has been 
provided. Once these concerns are addressed and the 
additional information needed has been released (as outlined in 
this document) it will allow residents and the PC to give an 
informed response to every aspect of the proposed 
development. 
 
October 2021 
 
The Parish Council is very grateful for the time taken to clarify a 
number of the points that were raised in our comments. 
However, there are still key areas where there is inadequate 
information at this time, including:  
 
- firm evidence of the mix of housing/local needs  
- detail on covenants and how local residents will be prioritised - 
impact on local services 
- green spaces and facilities  
- transport and lighting  
- impact of further consultations  
 
The PC is sure the developers agree that it will be important for 
these issues to be open to scrutiny and comment by residents 
before planning is finalised. As such we look forward to detailed 
information on these areas being released for comment as soon 
as possible within the planning process by Maple Oak, Karbon 
and NCC. 
 
January 2022 
 
The Parish Council is concerned that in spite of their assertions, 
the work undertaken by the developers with its new proposals 
do little or nothing to deal with the majority of queries the PC, 
residents and NCC have raised in their earlier comments, 
including:  
 
- firm evidence of the mix of housing/local needs  

Page 17



 

- detail on covenants and how local residents will be prioritised - 
impact on local services and facilities  
- green spaces and play areas  
- transport and parking  
- lack of further consultations 
- groundwater, drainage and pollution  
- environmental mitigation  
- appearance of the properties.  
 
The PC also notes that the new proposals increase the density 
of the site, increasing the issues rather than mitigating them.  
 
The proposals also may cause more problems for neighbouring 
residents being overlooked as well as reducing connections to 
the rest of the village.  
 
The PC would like to stress that it would like to see development 
on the Mart Field. However it needs to fit with the needs of the 
local area and the new proposals have done little if anything to 
ensure this is the case. The developers have shown no regard 
for this and little or no care for concerns raised by local 
stakeholders who will have to actually live with any development 
on the site.  
 
Given the lack of promised consultation with the public and the 
significant worsening of the proposals for the site, the Parish 
Council has had no choice but to change its opinion on this 
matter from neutral to a formal objection. 
 
June 2022 
 
Following the revised proposals for the site, Bellingham Parish 
Council has reviewed the documentation provided. For sake of 
brevity, the Parish Council has outlined below a list of the 
objections and other areas of concern that it has previously 
raised regarding the Mart Field development proposals and 
added comments based on the revised planning application. 
 
Proportion of housing as social/rented only - the plans have not 
offered any additional evidence of the need for the level of social 
housing being provided. The new planning documentation state 
that the tenure mix has now been agreed with NCC. If this is 
correct, it is disappointing to see a lack of engagement with local 
resident concerns on this matter. There is no evidence that there 
are sufficient residents within the Bellingham area who need 
immediate social housing. How will the rest be found? This 
would simply mean new residents being found from far afield 
and will fail to maximise benefit to the local area. 
 
Ensuring houses are only rented to residents from local area - 
no further information on how this would be undertaken. As 
mentioned above, there is no evidence that the site will be filled 
with local resident desiring social housing. No mention has yet 

Page 18



 

been made of letting restrictions to ensure only local residents 
are offered properties on the site. 
 
Apartment block - appears 4 more parking spaces for the flats 
have been added. Please note that the PC has concerns over 
even this increased level of parking. Vulnerable residents may 
still have vehicles. Coupled with staff vehicles and visitors, this 
could lead to additional vehicles needing to park nearby. The 
Mart Field estate is not designed for on-street parking and 
parking in the main village will exacerbate already pressured 
parking in Bellingham. In addition, new legislation requires all 
resident parking for developments such as these to have car 
charging facilities and this does not appear to have been built 
into the designs. 
 
Impact on local facilities/existing facilities - despite repeated 
mentions, the level of facilities mentioned as being present in 
Bellingham are still overstated. The document mentions that this 
would be dealt with via s106, followed by statements that it 
would be unaffordable for the site to make s106 payments. 
Given the pressure this development will put on local green 
spaces and other facilities a lack of input from s106 would be of 
great concern to the Parish and local residents. 
 
Green spaces - the grassed area near Fountain Cottage now 
doubles as SUDs - open pond or underground SUDs? This 
would be useful to be clarified as it impacts on the usage of the 
site and health and safety. The lack of provision for play 
area/green space per planning regulations (and no planned 
s106 for development elsewhere) is worrying. The Parish 
Council noted that the developer has the option to thin the trees 
on the old railway line - this is a key wildlife corridor. In addition, 
elsewhere within planning documentation they state that they 
provide a valuable screen between the new development and 
other nearby properties. Please note that the land is not owned 
by Network Rail so their permission would not be useful and the 
Parish Council would be strongly opposed to any removal of 
trees along this line. 
 
Parking - no village parking provided still, which is an ongoing 
disappointment for the use of this site. 
 
Sewerage - NCC had stated run off from the site would be more 
than the local drains could cope with and this has not been 
reviewed as far as noted. Will SUDs plans deal with this? Needs 
clarity and input from NCC before any approval is granted. 
 
Overlooking houses - new proposals seem to have mitigated this 
issue for much of Cairns Road and houses near Fountain 
Cottage by putting bungalows at these points. The PC is happy 
with this proposed solution. 
 

Page 19



 

Environmental - unclear of size of EV system/usefulness of 2 
panels - no changes or clarification to this matter. 
 
Footpaths - footpaths to Malting Close seem to have been put 
back, which again the Parish Council is grateful to see. It is vital 
that any new development allows easy access to the rest of the 
village and is not an enclosed, separate enclave. 
 
Construction traffic - no amends or additional information about 
this. 
 
Public consultation - the new documentation noted that there 
were only 18 complaints + PC objection which was low for a 
population of 1,400. This could be a result of the lack of 
promised proper consultation undertaken by the developers and 
Karbon. Many residents may be unaware of the repeated 
amends to the plans and resubmissions and therefore not 
realised the need to re-comment. As no promised proper face to 
face consultation has materialised there has been wholly 
inadequate public consultation on such a major development as 
this. 
 
Pollution - no further information on the extent of the 
naphthalene pollution or test results relating to this. 
 
Appearance - appears to have been improved - all buff brick and 
red roof tiles removed and 20 now have stone frontages, which 
appears more in keeping with the area. 
 
The Parish Council is therefore grateful to see improvements in 
the issues relating to overlooking of nearby homes, as well as 
the appearance of the proposed houses and footpath 
connections. However there are still a number of very 
fundamental issues that have simply not been addressed to 
allow the Parish to support this decision. As such, the Parish 
Council’s objection to the current form of the proposals has to 
stand. 
  

Highways 
Development 
Management  

Object - the overall visitor parking in terms of the housing 
development is not in complete adherence to local policy. The 
houses all have parking in accordance with standards. However, 
the apartment block should generate 20 parking spaces and 5 
visitor parking spaces. Given the density of housing apartments 
bring, visitor parking displaced would undermine the provision 
generally on the layout. The plans propose a footpath across the 
open space / SUDS area, however insufficient information is 
presented to ascertain if this is achievable / deliverable. The lack 
of parking to standards is of concern in relation to general 
amenity and long-term quality of place.  

Design & Built 
Heritage   

November 2021 
 
Built Heritage and Design have considered the submitted 
proposal with regards to design and heritage planning policy in 

Page 20



 

the NPPF. We consider development of the former Auction Mart 
site to be acceptable in principle, but the design, layout and 
massing of the buildings must reflect the character of 
Bellingham.  
 
In its current form, the design of the residential development 
does not appropriately respond to or positively contribute to local 
character and would be an incongruous addition to a historically 
and visually sensitive gateway site close to the centre of the 
settlement.  
 
Paragraph 203 of the NPPF states that the effect of an 
application on the significance of a non-designated heritage 
asset (NDHA) should be taken into account. We consider the 
proposed development would adversely impact on the setting of 
the road bridge and former Union Workhouse as NDHAs, and 
this amounts to harm to significance. The NPPF requires that we 
take a balanced judgement to the scale of any harm or loss when 
determining this application and the level of harm would be less 
than substantial.  
 
Paragraph 134 states that development that is not well designed 
should be refused, especially where it fails to reflect government 
guidance on design. Our concerns regarding design, together 
with the harm to the significance of the NDHAs mean that we 
cannot support this proposal and recommend refusal. 
 
February 2022 
 
In its revised form, the design of the residential development fails 
to respond to or positively contribute to local character and 
would be an incongruous addition to a historically and visually 
sensitive gateway site close to the centre of the settlement.  
 
The ‘less than substantial’ harm to the significance of 
Bellingham, the road bridge and former Union Workhouse as 
NDHAs, identified in our comments submitted 19th November 
2021, has not been mitigated by the amended proposals.  
 
The NPPF requires that we take a balanced judgement to the 
scale of any harm or loss when determining this application. 
Again, we refer to paragraph 134 which states that development 
that is not well designed should be refused, especially where it 
fails to reflect government guidance on design.  
 
Our concerns regarding design, together with the harm to the 
significance of the NDHAs mean that we cannot support this 
proposal and recommend refusal. 
 
June 2022 
  

Page 21



 

The proposed development does not accord with the strategic 
design policies in Policy QOP 1 and therefore should be refused 
on design grounds as stated in paragraph 134 of the NPPF.  
 
Without changes to the layout of the site, scale and massing of 
the apartment block and materials, the development would also 
present ‘less than substantial’ harm to the significance of 
Bellingham, the road bridge and former Union Workhouse as 
NDHAs  

Northumberland 
National Park 

No objection. 
 
  

NCC Adult Social 
Care  

Adult Social Care have been working with the applicant for a 
number of months to design and bring forward supported living 
apartments that will meet the needs of an increasing frail elderly 
population. There is currently no provision for older people in 
need of additional care and support in appropriately designed 
accommodation. Adult Social Care support the application for 
this development which will alleviate some of the Health and 
Social care pressures in the rural west of the county.  

County Archaeologist   No objection and no further archaeological work is required.  
  

County Ecologist  No objection subject to condition. 
 
  

Lead Local Flood 
Authority (LLFA)  

No objection subject to conditions. 
 
  

NCC Education - 
Schools  

No objection and no education contribution is sought. 
 
  

Waste Management - 
West   

No response received.    

Countryside/ Rights 
of Way  

No objection subject to condition. 
 
  

Public Protection  No objection subject to conditions. 
  

The Coal Authority  No objection. 
  

Natural England  No comments – refers to standing advice. 
  

Ministry Of Defence 
  

No objection. 

Fire & Rescue 
Service  

No objection in principle. 
 
  

NHS Northumberland 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group  

Request healthcare contribution of £33,300. 
 
  

Page 22



 

NCC Climate 
Change Team   

No objection - seeks clarification and further information on 
some elements, including solar PV panels, energy efficiency 
measures and air source heat pumps.  

Northumbrian Water 
Ltd  

No objection subject to condition. 
 
  

Police (Designing out 
Crime Officer)  

No objection – provides comments and seeks clarification in 
respect of lighting and car parking provision. 

 
5. Public Responses 
 
Neighbour Notification 
 

Number of Neighbours Notified 64 

Number of Objections 17 

Number of Support 0 

Number of General Comments 4 

 
Notices 
 
Site notice – major development, affecting listed building and public right of way: 12 
January 2022 
Press notice - Hexham Courant: 13 January 2022 
 
Summary of Responses: 
 
Following publicity of the application as originally submitted 15 objections and 4 
representations (neither in support nor objection) were received. Following further 
consultation on the application as amended, a further 7 objections were received, 
including 5 from parties that had previously commented. The representations raise the 
following issues: 
 

• change in the character of the village and proposed design is disappointing and 
references lower quality design and materials in the village – the design should 
be in keeping with the context of Bellingham to improve its character and 
appearance, including the use of stone 

• a block of flats is out of character with the village 

• lack of open space and amenity space within the development 

• amount and type of new housing is not justified in this location and Bellingham 
cannot sustain this level 

• scheme is out of proportion to the needs of the community and does not reflect 
the local needs and type of housing required 

• more affordable housing to buy should be provided within the development 

• impacts on local services and infrastructure, including schools, health and 
social care 

• additional traffic, suitability of existing road network and impacts on highway 
safety, parking and pedestrians 

• limited public transport and footpath/cycle infrastructure 

• flood risk and drainage 

• there should be bungalows to eastern and western boundaries as well as 
southern boundary to minimise impacts 

Page 23



 

• application is not clear in terms of who would be offered vulnerable housing 
apartments and does not explain this provision – concerns if this would not be 
for elderly and is for those with other social problems 

• adverse impacts on the amenity, living conditions and quality of life for adjacent 
residents  

• potential effects on access to the village centre 

• welcome new fencing to railway line to prevent fly-tipping and for privacy 

• would like plans to allow for access to rear of existing properties to the east for 
deliveries etc. 

• welcome development of the site and high level of affordable housing 

• construction jobs will only be a short-term benefit 

• scheme should make provision for parking to serve the village 

• lack of information in terms of climate change and sustainable 
design/renewable energy measures  

• lack of employment provision and limited weight to be given to new shop as this 
is not part of the current proposals  

• limited pre-application consultation with the community 

• potential adverse effects on tourism and the visitor economy 

• scheme should provide good access to the immediate surrounding countryside 
and provision of new pedestrian routes in and around the site 

• lack of detail on the proposed C2 use 

 

The above is a summary of the comments. The full written text is available on our 
website at: http://publicaccess.northumberland.gov.uk/online-
applications//applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QYCNAOQSITW0
0    
 
6. Planning Policy 
 
6.1 National Planning Policy 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2021) 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) (2021, as updated) 
 
6.2 Development Plan Policy 
 
Northumberland Local Plan (March 2022) 

 
STP 1 Spatial strategy 
STP 2 Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
STP 3 Principles of sustainable development 
STP 4 Climate change mitigation and adaptation 
STP 5 Health and wellbeing 
STP 6 Green infrastructure 
HOU 2 Provision of new residential development 
HOU 4 Housing development site allocations 
HOU 5 Housing types and mix 
HOU 6 Affordable housing provision 
HOU 9 Residential development management 
HOU 11 Homes for older and vulnerable people 
QOP 1 Design principles 
QOP 2 Good design and amenity 

Page 24

http://publicaccess.northumberland.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QYCNAOQSITW00
http://publicaccess.northumberland.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QYCNAOQSITW00
http://publicaccess.northumberland.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=QYCNAOQSITW00


 

QOP 3 Public realm design principles 
QOP 4 Landscaping and trees 
QOP 5 Sustainable design and construction 
QOP 6 Delivering well-designed places 
TRA 1 Promoting sustainable connections 
TRA 2 The effects of development on the road network 
TRA 4 Parking provision in new development 
ICT 2 New developments 
ENV 1 Approaches to assessing the impact of development on the natural, historic 
and built environment 
ENV 2 Biodiversity and geodiversity 
ENV 3 Landscape 
ENV 7 Historic environment and heritage assets 
WAT 1 Water quality 
WAT 2 Water supply and sewerage 
WAT 3 Flooding 
WAT 4 Sustainable Drainage Systems 
POL 1 Unstable and contaminated land 
POL 2 Pollution and air, soil and water quality 
INF 1 Delivering development related infrastructure 
INF 5 Open space and facilities for sport and recreation 
INF 6 Planning obligations 
 
6.3 Other Documents/Strategies 
 
- National Design Guide (2021) 
- National Model Design Code (2021) 
- Building for a Healthy Life (2020) 
- Northumberland Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA - 2015) 
- Partial SHMA Update (2018) 
- Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA 2019-2036) including Five-
Year Housing Land Supply of Deliverable Sites (2019-2024) (September 2019) 
- Bellingham / North Tyne Housing Needs Survey (2019) 
- Housing Site Allocations Selection and Appraisal Technical Paper (December 2018) 
- Local Plan: Heritage Impact Assessments (2019) 
- Housing Strategy for Northumberland 2019-2022 
 
7. Appraisal 
 
7.1 In accordance with Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004, planning applications should be determined in accordance with the 
development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In this case the 
development plan comprises policies in the Northumberland Local Plan (NLP) (March 
2022). The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (July 2021) and Planning 
Practice Guidance (PPG) are material considerations in determining this application. 
 
7.2 Having regard to the assessment of the site, its constraints and the application 
proposals, as well as the responses and representations received during the 
consultation period, the main issues for consideration for the application include: 
 

● principle of development 
● housing mix and affordable housing 
● design, visual impact and heritage assets 

Page 25



 

● residential amenity 
● sustainable transport and highway safety 
● flood risk and drainage 
● archaeology 

● ecology 
● ground conditions 
● planning obligations and viability 

 
Principle of Development 
 
7.3 Policy STP 1 of the NLP identifies Bellingham as a second-tier Service Centre 
where new housing development that helps to maintain and strengthen the role of the 
settlement is generally supported. Policy STP 3 states that in applying the presumption 
in favour of sustainable development, and to deliver against economic, social and 
environmental objectives, proposals will be expected to adhere to identified principles. 
These include providing a type and mix of homes to meet local housing need and 
increase choice in the local housing market; making efficient use of land including 
achieving higher densities in more accessible locations where appropriate and through 
the re-use of brownfield sites; demonstrating high quality sustainable design; and 
being accessible by, or be able to be made accessible by public transport, walking or 
cycling where feasible. 
 
7.4 Policy HOU 2 of the NLP relates to the provision of new residential 
development. The delivery of new open market and affordable dwellings in a range of 
tenures, types and sizes will be supported where it is consistent with the spatial 
strategy for Northumberland, meeting objectively assessed housing needs and 
housing priorities; and making the best and most efficient use of land and the 
redevelopment of suitable previously-developed ‘brownfield’ sites. 
 
7.5 In accordance with the spatial strategy, the overall Auction Mart site (including 
the land subject of the proposed retail application), is specifically allocated for 
residential development in Policy HOU 4 of the NLP, with an indicative capacity for 50-
65 dwellings. Proposed development on sites allocated under Policy HOU 4 should 
demonstrate that they would not unacceptably reduce or hinder the development 
options for a wider site; avoid development within Flood Zones 2 and 3; reflect 
identified housing needs and market considerations; have regard to provision of new 
and impacts on existing infrastructure and services; and take into account Heritage 
Impact Assessments for the sites. 
 
7.6 In accordance with the NPPF, the Council is required to identify and update 
annually a supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient to provide five years’ worth of 
housing against their housing requirement. The five-year housing land supply position, 
as well as the Housing Delivery Test, is pertinent to proposals for housing in that 
paragraph 11(d) and corresponding footnote 7 of the NPPF indicates that the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development applies where a Local Planning 
Authority cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites or where 
recent housing delivery is below a 75% threshold. 
 
7.7 As identified in the Northumberland Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment (SHLAA, September 2019), the Council can demonstrate a plentiful five-
year housing land supply from ‘deliverable’ sites against the county’s minimum Local 
Housing Need figure. The forecast ‘deliverable’ five-year supply for 2020-2025 would 
equate to a 10.9 years housing land supply. The latest Housing Delivery Test result 

Page 26



 

records that Northumberland achieved 257% delivery against its minimum housing 
need for the past three monitoring years 2017-20. Therefore, in the context of 
paragraph 11(d) and Footnote 7 of the NPPF, the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development does not apply. The extent of recent delivery and outstanding 
permissions/commitments also shows that Northumberland has therefore already 
more than satisfied the NPPF objective of significantly boosting the supply of land for 
housing.   
 
7.8 Having regard to the above policy context, the principle of new residential 
development on the site is supported by the policies in the NLP. The site is specifically 
allocated for housing development in the NLP and the proposed amount of 
development is considered to be in line with Policy HOU 4 and the spatial strategy for 
Northumberland set out at Policy STP 1 of the NLP. However, the suitability of the site 
for new homes as proposed is subject to the consideration of other matters that will 
need to be assessed, which are set out in the remainder of this report. 
 
Housing Mix and Affordable Housing 
 
7.9 Paragraph 60 of the NPPF states that to support the Government’s objective of 
significantly boosting the supply of homes, it is important that a sufficient amount and 
variety of land can come forward where it is needed and that the needs of groups with 
specific housing requirements are addressed. Paragraph 62 goes on to highlight that 
the size, type and tenure of housing needed for different groups in the community 
should be addressed and reflected in planning policies. 
 
7.10 Paragraph 63 of the NPPF states that “where major development involving the 
provision of housing is proposed, planning policies and decisions should expect at 
least 10% of the total number of homes to be available for affordable home ownership, 
unless this would exceed the level of affordable housing required in the area, or 
significantly prejudice the ability to meet the identified affordable housing needs of 
specific groups. Exemptions to this 10% requirement should also be made where the 
site or proposed development:  
 
a) provides solely for Build to Rent homes;  
b) provides specialist accommodation for a group of people with specific needs (such 
as purpose-built accommodation for the elderly or students);  
c) is proposed to be developed by people who wish to build or commission their own 
homes; or  
d) is exclusively for affordable housing, an entry-level exception site or a rural 
exception site.” 
 
7.11 The Council’s Housing Strategy for Northumberland (2019-2022) recognises 
that the demand for affordable housing continues to outstrip supply, which needs to 
be met by the development of new-build affordable housing.  It sets an objective for 
the Council to facilitate the delivery of up to 1,000 affordable homes to rent over the 
four-year lifetime of the strategy. The North of Tyne Combined Authority also has a 
key strategic aspiration to ensure the delivery of a sustainable supply of high-quality 
housing of a variety of types and tenures that is affordable, accessible and which 
meets the housing needs of current and future generations.  
 
7.12 Policies HOU 5 (housing types and mix) and HOU 6 (affordable housing 
provision) of the NLP require that development proposals should be assessed in terms 
of how well they meet the housing needs and aspirations identified in the most up-to-

Page 27



 

date Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) or local housing needs 
assessment. 
 
7.13 Policy HOU 5 looks to provide a range of good quality, energy-efficient homes, 
including affordable homes, to deliver a more balanced mix of tenures and housing 
types and sizes, alongside specialist housing for older and vulnerable people. 
Development proposals need to be assessed according to how well they contribute to 
meeting the needs and aspirations of those living in and seeking to move to 
Northumberland, as identified in the SHMA, local housing needs assessment and/or 
other evidence of local housing needs. 
 
7.14 Policy HOU 6 relates to the delivery of affordable housing provision and the 
level of provision that will be sought on major development proposals. The policy sets 
out housing viability areas that will determine the expected amount of affordable 
housing provision to be delivered on site. Bellingham is identified as a medium value 
area where 15% affordable provision would be required on sites.  
 
7.15 Policy HOU 6 also states that the tenures and dwelling types of affordable 
homes will be negotiable within reason on a site-by-site basis to ensure affordability 
and to reflect local housing needs and taking into account local market conditions, the 
structure of the local housing market and interest from potential Registered Providers 
(RP). Within medium value areas the 15% affordable provision is recommended to 
provide up to 33% as affordable homes to rent and at least 67% for affordable home 
ownership. 
 
7.16 Policy HOU 11 of the NLP supports the provision of new housing for older and 
more vulnerable people. It should be noted that the policy will require a 50% proportion 
of new affordable homes (and 20% of market homes) to meet the Government’s higher 
M4(2) Building Regulations standards of accessibility and adaptability, which can be 
secured by planning condition. The applicant has provided some further information 
to demonstrate that this requirement can be achieved, which could also be secured 
by planning condition. 
 
7.17 The supporting text to Policy HOU 11 does indicate the priority needs and 
opportunities for delivering supported housing are for ‘extra care’ or specialised 
supported housing for older adults aged over 65 in Berwick-upon-Tweed, Rothbury, 
Bellingham, Hexham, Morpeth and Cramlington. The text also highlights that some of 
the needs for supported housing and care accommodation may be provided for on the 
sites allocated in Policy HOU 4. 
 
7.18 The most recent Bellingham area local housing survey (2019) identified a desire 
from local residents for improved access to services as people age and the need to 
downsize to smaller cheaper-to-run accommodation, while there was also some need 
for young people seeking their own accommodation and for growing families. While 
purchasing a home on the open market was preferred for nearly half of those 
households with a housing need, there was also evident demand for affordable 
housing. 2-bed bungalows were most sought, as well as some 3-bed houses and 
bungalows, together with some desire for sheltered/retirement housing. There was 
also a desire from those with health or accessibility issues for stair-free housing. The 
proposed scheme is considered to broadly reflect these predominant housing needs. 
 
7.19 In assessing the proposed housing mix and tenure as submitted in the 
amended scheme officers have consulted with colleagues in Adult Social Care (ASC) 

Page 28



 

and the Housing Enabling Officers (HEO). The housing mix and tenures as currently 
proposed have been amended following discussions with the HEO to further refine the 
mix and to explore options for change and phasing after initial concerns were raised 
over the scale, tenure and housing mix. The applicant has stated that whilst the phase 
2 tenures have been set out within the application, if it is demonstrated through 
demand on phase 1 that a different mix would be more appropriate, it may be possible 
to review the mix on phase 2, for example increasing the homeownership product 
and/or introducing 1-bed accommodation. Officers are also mindful that the type and 
need for the housing being proposed has been raised as a concern in objections from 
the Parish Council and other interested parties. 
 
7.20 It is acknowledged that the scheme is proposing affordable housing significantly 
above the 15% requirement of Policy HOU 6, with the application looking to deliver 
100% affordable housing provision on the site. The most significant change to the 
tenure from the scheme as originally submitted is the increase in rent to buy properties 
on the site. As the scheme proposes to deliver higher than the policy requirement at 
100% affordable housing, then there is scope to provide a greater proportion of the 
homes as affordable rented while still achieving at least 10% of the total homes as 
affordable home ownership products. 
 
7.21 ASC comment that they have been working with the applicant to design and 
bring forward supported living apartments that will meet the needs of an increasing 
frail elderly population. They highlight that there is currently no provision for older 
people in need of additional care and support in appropriately designed 
accommodation. ASC support the application for this development, which they advise 
will alleviate some of the Health and Social care pressures in the rural west of the 
county. ASC anticipate that the proposed apartments will be an alternative to an 
institutional living environment, with individuals with care and/or support needs living 
in their own accommodation but receiving care and support to meet their assessed 
needs. It is purpose designed to meet changing needs over time and provides the care 
and support necessary to facilitate continued independent living in the community. 
 
7.22 Following further consultation on the proposed mix, the HEO comments that 
the site is suitable for affordable housing being close to amenities and services. The 
number exceeds the minimum proportion that is required by the NLP, although there 
are some concerns about the scale, mix and tenure mix for the area, which the HEO 
states have been in part allayed by the phasing and flexibility indicated by the 
applicant. This is further helped by the fact that 20 of the units will be for supported 
housing and ASC have indicated support for these. 
 
7.23 The HEO concludes that the proposed housing mix and tenure breakdown is 
broadly in line with the county’s identified needs and local and national policy 
requirements. The absence of Discount Market Value (DMV) homes is noted but could 
potentially be offset by the change in tenure of other affordable properties in the area. 
The revisions include changes to the supported living apartment numbers and the 
change in tenure of five of the 2-bed houses from affordable rent to rent to buy, which 
the HEO states goes some way to addressing concerns in respect of the balance of 
tenures.  
 

7.24 The delivery of the affordable housing will need to be secured by a Section 106 
agreement, which should include a requirement for an Affordable Housing Statement 
to be submitted to the Council for approval before development commences. This 
should set out the agreed tenure mix and plots for affordable homes, any alternative 

Page 29



 

tenure options, the timing of their delivery in the context of the overall housing 
development, arrangements for their transfer to a Registered Provider and for them to 
remain as affordable housing in perpetuity (where applicable), any arrangements for 
the marketing of affordable home ownership products, and the basis on which the 
affordable homes will be occupied. It is also recommended that the Section 106 allows 
for changes in tenure types to allow the RP to change tenures if the market change. 
 
7.25 In light of the above considerations, and having regard to the relevant policy 
context, the proposed housing mix is considered, on balance, to be acceptable in this 
location. This is an allocated housing site, and the proposals would deliver a mix of 
house types and tenures, including supported living apartments that are supported by 
ASC. Although there are no market homes as part of the scheme that could contribute 
to a wider housing mix, it is noted that the scheme would make a significant 
contribution to affordable housing in the local area and the county’s overall need.  
 
7.26 Whilst it is felt that there could arguably be an improved housing mix on the site 
to better reflect local needs in the area, including provision of open market homes, it 
is acknowledged that there are apparent difficulties in this site being brought forward 
for development, and the Brownfield Housing Fund will be able to assist in this. The 
proposed housing mix is therefore considered to be acceptable and broadly in line with 
Policies HOU 4, HOU 5, HOU 6 and HOU 11 of the NLP and the NPPF in this respect. 
 
Design, Visual Impact and Heritage Assets 
 
7.27 The NPPF at paragraph 126 states that “the creation of high quality, beautiful 
and sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and 
development process should achieve” and recognises that “good design is a key 
aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work 
and helps make development acceptable to communities”. Officers note the added 
emphasis to design in the most recent version of the NPPF published in July 2021, 
and that this is a key aspect of achieving sustainable development. In effect, design 
has been given greater weight in the decision-making process and the National Design 
Guide and National Model Design Code are material considerations.  
 
7.28 Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that decisions should ensure that 
developments will function well and add to the overall quality of the area; are visually 
attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate landscaping; are 
sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built environment; 
establish or maintain a strong sense of place; and create places that are safe, inclusive 
and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of 
amenity for existing and future users. Furthermore, the NPPF sets out at paragraph 
131 that trees make an important contribution to the character and quality of urban 
environments and can also help mitigate and adapt to climate change, and this looks 
to ensure that new streets are tree-lined unless there are clear, justifiable and 
compelling reasons why this would be inappropriate. 
 
7.29 Paragraph 134 of the NPPF states that “development that is not well-designed 
should be refused, especially where it fails to reflect local design policies and 
government guidance on design” and references the National Design Guide and 
National Model Design Code in this respect. Conversely, significant weight should be 
given to design that reflects local design policies and government guidance on design 
and/or outstanding or innovative designs that promote high levels of sustainability, or 

Page 30



 

help raise the standard of design more generally in an area, so long as they fit in with 
the overall form and layout of their surroundings. 
 
7.30 The 10 characteristics in the National Design Guide (NDG) that should be used 
to appraise a development are:  
 

1. Context – enhances the surroundings.  
2. Identity – attractive and distinctive.   
3. Built form – a coherent pattern of development.   
4. Movement – accessible and easy to move around.   
5. Nature – enhanced and optimised.   
6. Public spaces – safe, social and inclusive.   
7. Uses – mixed and integrated.   
8. Homes and buildings – functional, healthy and sustainable.   
9. Resources – efficient and resilient.   
10.  Lifespan – made to last. 

 
7.31 With regard to some of the key elements that are highlighted, the NDG sets out 
that well-designed new development responds positively to the features of the site 
itself and the surrounding context beyond the site boundary, and they are shaped by 
an understanding of the context. Some features include local heritage and character 
and views inwards and outwards. The NDG also makes clear that well-designed new 
development is integrated into its wider surroundings and is demonstrably based on 
an understanding of the existing situation. This includes patterns of built form and the 
architecture that is prevalent in the area, including the local vernacular, other 
precedents that contribute to local character and materials. It is also influenced 
positively by the history and heritage of the site, its surroundings and wider area and 
the significance and setting of heritage assets. This will be an important consideration 
for this site given its prominent location and proximity so close to the traditional and 
historic core of the village. 
 
7.32 In terms of identity, the NDG sets out that well-designed new development is 
influenced by an appreciation and understanding of vernacular, local or regional 
character, including existing built form, landscape and local architectural precedents. 
Well-designed places and buildings are visually attractive and aim to delight their 
occupants and passers-by. 
 
7.33 The NDG highlights that nature contributes to the quality of a place and to 
people’s quality of life, and it is a critical component of well-designed places. Natural 
features are integrated into well-designed development, including natural and 
designed landscapes, high quality public open spaces, street trees, and other trees, 
grass, planting and water. Well-designed places provide attractive open spaces in 
locations that are easy to access, with activities for all to enjoy, such as play, food 
production, recreation and sport, so as to encourage physical activity and promote, 
health, well-being and social inclusion. 
 
7.34 Following on from this, the NDG highlights that the quality of the spaces 
between buildings is as important as the buildings themselves. Well-designed new 
developments will therefore include well-located public spaces that support a wide 
variety of activities and encourage social interaction to promote health, well-being, 
social and civic inclusion. The above aspects are an important element to be 
considered for the proposed scheme given the nature of the proposals and units, 

Page 31



 

which include supported living, and where opportunities for wider mobility and access 
to other spaces outside of the site may be more limited. 
 
7.35 The NDG states that well-designed homes and buildings are functional, 
accessible and sustainable, providing internal environments and associated external 
spaces that support the health and well-being of their users and all who experience 
them. They meet the needs of a diverse range of users, taking into account factors 
such as the ageing population and cultural differences. Successful buildings also 
provide attractive, stimulating and positive places for all with good quality internal and 
external environmental for their users, promoting health and well-being, and relating 
positively to the private, shared and public spaces around them, contributing to social 
interaction and inclusion. Again, this is felt to be a particularly important consideration 
for a major housing scheme within the village and given the nature of the 
accommodation and likely occupants who may be less mobile. 
 
7.36 Policies QOP 1, QOP 2, QOP 3, QOP 4, QOP 5 and QOP 6 of the NLP are 
relevant in relation to achieving high quality, sustainable design and well-designed 
places in accordance with the NPPF.  Policies ENV 1 and ENV 7 are also relevant in 
respect of development affecting the built and historic environment as well as heritage 
assets, including non-designated heritage assets. In terms of green infrastructure and 
open space requirements, Policies STP 6 and INF 5 look to ensure there is appropriate 
provision as part of new developments, which will also contribute to achieving the aim 
of well-designed places. 
 
7.37 Policy QOP 1 sets out general design principles against which development will 
be assessed. These include that proposals should make a positive contribution to local 
character and distinctiveness; create or contribute to a strong sense of place and 
integrate the built form with the site and wider local area; be visually attractive and 
incorporate high quality materials and detailing; respect and enhance the natural, 
developed and historic environment; ensure buildings and spaces are functional and 
adaptable for future uses; facilitate an inclusive, comfortable, user-friendly and legible 
environment; support health and wellbeing and enhance quality of life; support positive 
social interaction and a safe and secure environment; not cause unacceptable harm 
to the amenity of existing and future occupiers of the site and surroundings; 
incorporate green infrastructure and opportunities to support wildlife; make provision 
for efficient use of resources; respond to the climatic conditions of the location; mitigate 
climate change and be adaptable; ensure the longevity of buildings and spaces. 
 
7.38 Policy QOP 2 seeks to achieve good design and a high standard of amenity for 
existing and future users, which will also be considered in more detail in the following 
section on residential amenity. Policy QOP 5 looks to secure sustainable design and 
construction, including incorporating passive design measures; prioritise use of locally 
sourced, recycled and energy efficient materials; and incorporate or connect to small-
scale renewable and low carbon energy systems amongst other criteria. The applicant 
has provided additional information in this respect, indicating that the development 
would incorporate solar PV panels and air source heat pumps throughout the scheme 
amongst other measures. Policy QOP 6 relates to delivering well-designed places 
making reference to relevant design guidance and policies and requiring design and 
access statements clearly demonstrating how design has been considered in the 
development process. 
 
7.39 Policy HOU 9 of the NLP relates specifically to residential development. The 
policy sets out criteria where new development will be supported, including where they 

Page 32



 

contribute to a sense of place, which supports community identity and pride; provide 
multi-functional spaces that support different recreational and social activities; provide 
functional space and facilities for refuse and storage; are constructed to a high quality 
of design; and perform positively against ‘Building for a Healthy Life’ principles. 
 
7.40 As referred to earlier, there are several listed buildings located within the vicinity 
of the site, as well as a scheduled monument to the east and other non-designated 
heritage assets. Policy ENV 7 NLP refers to the assessment of developments that may 
impact upon the historic environment and heritage assets. This includes consideration 
of impacts upon designated heritage assets, as well as non-designated heritage 
assets and archaeological impacts.  
 
7.41 Section 16 of the NPPF, and in particular paragraphs 194 – 208, also set out 
the framework for considering applications affecting the historic environment. 
Paragraph 199 of the NPPF advises that when considering the impact of a proposed 
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should 
be given to the asset’s conservation. Paragraph 203 refers to assessing the effect of 
development on non-designated heritage assets and where proposals directly or 
indirectly affect such assets, a balanced judgement will be required having regard to 
the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the asset. 
  
7.42 Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development which 
affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority shall have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 
 
7.43 The site occupies a prominent position with a road frontage to the north and 
public right of way to the south meaning this is highly visible in the local area. There 
are a mix of designs and materials for residential properties in the vicinity of the site. 
This includes development immediately to the west and north on Cairns Road and 
Fairshaw Crescent, which is not sympathetic to or in keeping with the more traditional 
character and local vernacular of Bellingham, and that is of little historic or visual merit 
in terms of design and materials. Notwithstanding the fact that it is open in character 
and free from buildings at present, the proposed development of this vacant, 
brownfield site could potentially enhance its character and appearance with a high-
quality design using appropriate materials, open space and landscaping. 
 
7.44 During the course of the pre-application and current application processes, as 
well as ongoing discussions with the applicant and their planning consultants, officers 
have highlighted that the principle of residential development on the site would be 
acceptable, which is reinforced with the housing allocation on the site following 
adoption of the NLP. However, this is also subject to being able to achieve an 
acceptable and high-quality form of development in terms of the layout, scale and 
design of the development, and ensuring this is well related to the site and surrounding 
area. This includes the use of suitable materials and features within the design that 
are appropriate to the character and appearance of Bellingham, which is particularly 
important given the prominent location of the site and its proximity to the more 
traditional and historic centre of the village. 
 
7.45 The proposed apartment building would be within a substantial building located 
to the north-western corner of the site, which benefits from existing landscaping to the 
boundary with the former railway line to the northern boundary and features the garage 

Page 33



 

units of properties on Cairns Road immediately to the west. This is a large building 
with a substantial width and roof form in comparison to the remainder of the proposed 
housing, as well as other buildings in the locality. It would have a total length of 48.6 
metres and a width of 18.1 metres at its widest section. The elevations would be 
broken up with different gabled roof heights ranging from 9.2 metres at its highest and 
6.7 metres at its lowest to either end of the building.  
 
7.46 Despite officers raising concerns in relation to the overall scale and design of 
this building as submitted with the application, the amended plans have increased the 
footprint as well as the scale and massing of the building on the site. It is acknowledged 
that the visual impact may be mitigated to some degree by its position at this part of 
the site, although this would remain a relatively large and imposing building in 
comparison to other development in the area. It is located very close to the northern 
boundary of the site and would have very limited external amenity space surrounding 
it. The apartment building is proposed to be constructed with brick and slate grey roof 
tiles and would incorporate integrated solar PV panels to the front, south facing 
elevation. 
 
7.47 The remainder of the housing on the site comprises a mix of single-storey and 
two-storey properties of varying designs and roof forms. The layout shows single-
storey properties located to some parts of the east, south and west boundaries of the 
site adjacent to existing dwellings. As originally submitted the plans proposed the use 
of two brick types (buff and red colours) along with a slate grey and a red roof tile 
throughout the development. The submitted design and access statement makes 
reference to the surrounding residential development mainly being constructed from 
brick with grey/brown roof tiles. However, this does not make reference to or 
acknowledge the existing development adjacent to the site and in very close proximity 
within the centre of the village that is more traditional with the predominant use of 
natural stone and slate. Officers have sought to secure a better design and use of 
materials that are more prevalent in the immediate area to ensure a more sympathetic 
design of development appropriate to the character of the village, which is particularly 
important given the prominent location of the site. 
 
7.48 During the course of the application the applicant has submitted amended plans 
that attempt to improve the design through the use of materials and some design 
features to the elevations and windows. The latest plans now show that there are 20 
plots that are proposed to feature natural stone elevations and stone quoins to their 
frontages in various locations throughout the site as well as a small section to the 
central section of the apartment block. The roofs of the properties would only use a 
grey roof tile rather than incorporate any red, whilst these would also feature integrated 
solar PV panels. The applicant has suggested that the recent changes to increase the 
number of plots with stone frontages is as far as the scheme can go in terms of 
materials due to viability. 
 
7.49 Another area where officers have identified concerns is in relation to the 
scheme layout/design, and the provision of useable open space that is proposed 
throughout the development given its size as a major development. It is acknowledged 
that there is provision for supported living and some properties intended for older 
persons, although other housing on the site could accommodate families and younger 
children. There are some areas of tree planting and landscaped areas to the frontages 
of properties, however there is little in the way of useable open space that would 
enhance the design and amenity of the development.  As set out in Appendix H1 of 
the NLP, it is important to note that, irrespective of the requirement for open space, 

Page 34



 

developments will still be required to provide appropriate landscaping for other 
purposes, including in the interests of good design, for visual amenity, flood alleviation 
and biodiversity.  
 
7.50 Having regard to the above policies in terms of design, as well as Policy INF 5 
and the standards for the provision of open space set out at Appendix H1 of the NLP, 
the preference would be for delivery of open space on site. For a residential 
development of this scale, and taking into account only the Class C3 dwellings rather 
than the Class C2 supported living apartments, the standards at Appendix H1 set out 
that provision should be sought for 835.4sq.m of ‘amenity green space, natural and 
semi-natural green space’ (on site); 223.6sq.m of ‘provision for children and young 
people’ (off-site); and 250.6sq.m of ‘parks and gardens’ (off-site). It should be noted 
that Appendix H1 sets out that amenity green space should be capable of supporting 
informal recreation as well. The potential for a financial contribution to be sought will 
be considered further in the ‘planning obligations’ section of this report. 
 
7.51 There are no areas of open space of any note within the main part of the 
housing development, and very limited communal external space around the 
apartment building in relation to its size. This is particularly concerning given the nature 
of the units and as residents may well not be as mobile or able to travel to other spaces 
within the village or further afield. An area of around 1,133sq.m is identified as open 
space to the north-east of the overall site, which is located to the north of properties at 
Fountain Cottages and bound to the north and east by the main highway and to the 
west by the access into the new development and proposed retail store 
(21/03910/FUL). However, this area has been amended from the original submission 
in order to make provision for a SuDS basin as part of the surface water drainage 
scheme to address an objection raised by the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA).  
 
7.52 Although this area could provide some contribution to the visual amenity of the 
site and surrounding area as an area of open space and amenity green space, this is 
less likely to provide any significant functional purpose as useable amenity and open 
space given the contours as currently proposed to create the SuDS basin and its use 
as part of the drainage scheme. Further details of the design of this area could 
potentially be secured by condition should permission be granted in order to try and 
secure some improved dual function as SuDS and open space. No play provision is 
proposed in this area of the site, whilst this is not felt to be an entirely suitable location 
in any event given the proximity to the main B-class highway and the access to the 
development, as well as the proposed SuDS function. It should also be noted that 
Appendix H1 of the NLP states that for housing developments of less than 50 
dwellings, provision for children and young people can be delivered off-site. 
 
7.53 Given the scale of development, its location and potential effects on the setting 
of designated and non-designated heritage assets consultation has taken place with 
the Built Heritage and Design team (BHD). How the design of the development 
responds to the character of the site and the local vernacular is considered to be a key 
aspect of achieving an appropriate form of development in this location having regard 
to the NPPF, NLP and NDG. The Design and Access Statement submitted in support 
of this application asserts that the proposed development would not impact on the 
setting of any designated heritage assets in the locality and BHD agree with this 
assessment. 
 
7.54 BHD have identified the following as non-designated heritage assets (NDHAs) 
that they advise require consideration in the assessment of the planning application: 

Page 35



 

the stone-built road bridge on the B6320 to the north of the site over the disused 
railway line; the former Union Workhouse to the east of the site; as well as the historic 
settlement of Bellingham itself. The town is not designated as a Conservation Area, 
but this does not preclude it from having a degree of significance meriting 
consideration within a planning application. This assessment by BHD also reflects the 
Heritage Impact Assessment (HIA) that was undertaken as part of the preparation of 
the NLP and the allocation of the site under Policy HOU 4. 
 
7.55 In terms of any mitigation for potential harm arising through development of the 
site, the HIA states that any development should consider the existing character and 
built form in Bellingham, including being sympathetic to local character and history and 
landscape setting for this large and prominent site. In addition, it states that factors 
such as scale, massing, layout, materials, roofscape and height of buildings should 
demonstrate they have regard to the historic character of the settlement. This 
effectively reflects the guidance with the NDG and the policy context of the NLP and 
the NPPF in terms of achieving well-designed places. 
 
7.56 BHD had commented following the first revisions to the scheme that the revised 
Design and Access Statement continues to reference modern residential development 
in the surrounding area and does not assess Bellingham’s 19th century built 
environment as highlighted in their initial comments. The proposed stone facades did 
not address their concerns regarding the incongruent appearance of the development, 
which would consist of predominantly brick-built houses with red roofing tiles in an 
area characterised by local sandstone and slate roofs. The use of high-quality building 
materials to reflect the local vernacular should carry through the whole development. 
Furthermore, comments were made in relation to window and detailing that is not 
reflective of Bellingham’s local character and history as required by the NPPF.  
 
7.57 With regard to the apartment building, BHD reiterated that its form does not 
relate well to the traditional stone-built houses with two or three bay facades close to 
the application site. There is also concern about the loss of the open green character 
of the former auction mart site, which has not been addressed at all in the layout of 
the development. The proposed layout is distinctly suburban in contrast to 
Bellingham’s higher density core centred around a medieval marketplace. The former 
auction mart site acts as a green buffer between Bellingham's historic and well-
preserved high street, and later less successful residential development to the north. 
The site therefore currently preserves the historic setting of the village's core.  
 
7.58 BHD highlighted that despite the looser suburban layout of the site and the 
opportunities this could present for maintaining the site’s open character, the proposed 
site layout has minimal open green space. The historically significant green character 
of the auction mart would be much diminished by the proposals, which would 
adversely impact on the historic setting of the NDHAs. This, together with the design 
of the development, would amount to harm to the significance of the NDHAs, contrary 
to the NPPF objective to sustain or enhance the significance of heritage assets. 
 
7.59 In their most recent comments, BHD state that concerns regarding the distinctly 
suburban site layout in such a visually and historically sensitive location have not been 
addressed by the amended plans. The submitted sections demonstrate how the 
development will be seen and experienced from within and around the site. They 
present a loose scatter of dwellings, with no defined building line or focal points 
characteristic of the historic core of Bellingham. There remains no open green space 
within the proposed development which has an impact on the historic significance of 

Page 36



 

the former auction mart site and means there is a lack of amenity space for residents. 
The layout therefore does not accord with NLP Policy QOP 1 part 1(a) to make a 
positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness or part b, to create or 
contribute to a strong sense of place. 
 
7.60 With regard to the apartment block, BHD state that the scale and massing of 
this remains unchanged. Its depth and shallow pitched roof create an unattractive brick 
gable end which would be visible from within the development, and from the main road 
leading out of Bellingham to the north. The symmetrical composition of the elongated 
block fails to respond to the local built environment. The unwelcoming recessed 
pitched roof entrance, smaller pitched roof detailing, and fenestration pattern does not 
reflect or contribute to Bellingham’s historic character. The block is therefore contrary 
to Policy QOP 1 part b (ii) that development should reflect the form, scale and massing 
prevailing around the site and part d, which requires development to respect and 
enhance the natural, developed and historic environment including significant views. 
 
7.61 With regard to materials and detailing, BHD comment that the amended 
material plan now shows a stone elevation on 20 plots and on the recessed entrance 
to the proposed apartment block. Stone would be used on some principal elevations 
and some side elevations, the remainder being built in brick. This is a slight 
improvement on the previous plans. However, the placement of these frontages does 
not demonstrate a consideration of the site as viewed from the lanes and back yards 
behind the high street or glimpsed from the main road through the village as these 
visible elevations remain brick. The site would therefore not integrate the built form of 
the development into the local area as required by Policy QOP 1 part b. Previous 
comments regarding inappropriate architectural detailing including uPVC stick-on 
glazing bars and barge boards, canopies and brick corbeling have not been 
addressed. 
 
7.62 Having regard to relevant design and heritage planning policy in the NPPF and 
the NLP, BHD conclude that the proposed development does not accord with the 
strategic design policies in Policy QOP 1 and therefore should be refused on design 
grounds as stated in paragraph 134 of the NPPF. Without changes to the layout of the 
site, the scale and massing of the apartment block and materials, the development 
would also present ‘less than substantial’ harm to the significance of Bellingham, the 
road bridge and former Union Workhouse as NDHAs. 
 
7.63 Where such harm has been identified, the NPPF at paragraph 203 and Policy 
ENV 7 of the NLP require a balanced judgement in respect of the scale of any harm 
or loss when determining this application. BHD also refer to paragraph 134 of the 
NPPF, which states that development that is not well designed should be refused, 
especially where it fails to reflect government guidance on design. 
 
7.64 The application has been considered in detail having regard to the policy 
context set out within the NPPF and the NLP, as well as the guidance on achieving 
well-designed places as set out within the NDG in the absence of any current local 
guidelines. In particular, consideration has been given to the ten individual 
characteristics set out within the NDG that work together to create its physical 
character and well-designed places. There are concerns from officers that the 
application has not sufficiently demonstrated that it has been designed taking into 
account the context of the site and surrounding area, and particularly the historic 
character of the village. 
 

Page 37



 

7.65 In light of the above assessment and considerations, and acknowledging the 
revisions made and improvements to the materials used within the development, it is 
officer opinion that there remain outstanding concerns in relation to the amount, layout, 
scale and design of the development on the site. Whilst the principle of development 
is supported, and significant weight is given to the fact that this is an allocated site for 
housing, achieving an acceptable form of development and high-quality design that is 
well related to the character of Bellingham and provides a well-designed place for 
future occupants and the local community is a key aspect of achieving sustainable 
development in this prominent location having regard to paragraph 126 of the NPPF. 
Officers are also mindful of the added emphasis on design within the NPPF, as well 
as the policies of the NLP that set out requirements in terms of design, which are felt 
to be important in considering any proposals for major residential development on this 
site. 
 
7.66 Officers acknowledge that there are some positives and benefits as a result of 
development of the site that weigh in favour of this form of development on the site. 
These would include bringing forward new housing delivery on a longstanding vacant 
brownfield and allocated housing site in a sustainable location, as well as providing a 
significant contribution to affordable housing provision and supported living 
accommodation that is fully supported by ASC, albeit that there have been some 
issues raised in terms of the overall housing mix and whether this is entirely 
appropriate in terms of meeting an identified local need. 
 
7.67 However, whilst these benefits weigh in favour of the proposed development, it 
is not felt that these would outweigh the harm in this case to the character of the site 
and the surrounding area, including non-designated heritage assets, through the 
development of the site and the proposed layout, scale and design as identified in this 
section. Officers have given appropriate weight to the comments of BHD in relation to 
matters of design and the built environment, as well as other concerns and objections 
raised during the course of the application.  
 
7.68 Despite there being some improvements to the scheme since its original 
submission, by virtue of the scale and massing of the apartment block, the layout and 
density of development overall, the design and use of materials, as well as the limited 
open and external spaces and landscaping throughout the development, it is 
considered that the proposal would not result in an entirely acceptable form of design 
that would be well related to the character of the site and surrounding area, particularly 
given the scale of the development and its very prominent location within the 
settlement and adjacent to the historic form of Bellingham. 
 
7.69 In light of all of the above considerations, it is not felt that the proposal satisfies 
the relevant criteria at Policies QOP 1 and QOP 2 of the NLP in terms of achieving 
good design and quality of place, as well as providing a high standard of amenity for 
future users of the development. These include that the proposals should make a 
positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness; create or contribute to a 
strong sense of place; is visually attractive and incorporates sufficient high quality 
materials; respect and enhance the natural, developed and historic environment; 
facilitate an inclusive, comfortable, user-friendly and legible environment; support 
health and wellbeing and enhance quality of life; support positive social interaction; 
not cause harm to the amenity of future occupiers; and incorporate green 
infrastructure. Despite the benefits in bringing forward a site with a housing allocation 
and officers highlighting concerns over the main issues that have been highlighted in 
this section, it is not felt that the proposals have demonstrated that they satisfy the 

Page 38



 

NPPF, NLP and NDG in terms of achieving a well-designed place and development in 
terms of its context; identity; built form; movement; nature; public spaces; and the 
homes and buildings. 
 
7.70 In line with paragraph 134 of the NPPF, it is officer opinion that the development 
is not well designed, fails to reflect NLP design policies and government guidance on 
design, therefore the application should be refused. It is therefore considered that the 
proposal would be contrary to Policies STP 6, HOU 4, HOU 9, QOP 1, QOP 2, QOP 
3, QOP 4, QOP 6 and ENV 7 of the NLP and the NPPF. 
 
Residential Amenity 
 
7.71 In addition to achieving good design, Policy QOP 2 of the NLP requires 
development to provide a high standard of amenity for existing and future users of the 
development itself and preserve the amenity of those living in the local area. Policy 
POL 2 of the NLP also requires consideration to be given to potential pollution arising 
from new development. There are also elements of the NDG as discussed above that 
are important to consider in ensuring that the scheme delivers a well-designed place 
with high standards of amenity for existing and future users. 
 
7.72 The above policies are consistent with the aims of the NPPF, which seeks at 
Paragraph 130 that planning policies and decisions ensure a high standard of amenity 
for existing and future users, as well as paragraphs 174 and 185 that refer to the 
effects of new development in terms of potential pollution. 
 
7.73 Impacts upon amenity as a result of the development could include effects on 
the living conditions of occupiers of the existing adjacent dwellings in terms of a more 
intensive use of the site and associated activity/disturbance as well as effects on visual 
amenity, outlook, privacy and light etc. In this instance this could also include as a 
result of the variations in levels on the site and adjoining land, as well as proposal for 
the raising of levels in some areas of the site to address matters of ground water and 
flood risk. An acceptable level of amenity will also be expected for occupants of the 
new development to ensure that this is a well-designed new development. 
 
7.74 The submitted site plan positions bungalows in some areas where there are 
existing properties adjacent to the site, including where there are existing bungalows 
on Maltings Close to the south of the site. Bungalows are also proposed to the south-
eastern corner and in areas along the western boundary where there are both single 
and two-storey properties on Cairns Road. It is acknowledged that this will assist in 
reducing potential effects on amenity in these areas, although further consideration 
needs to be given to separation distances and difference in levels between the existing 
and proposed properties. During the application officers have requested the applicant 
provide cross-section drawings to show the relationship between properties across the 
site, as well as variations in levels. 
 
7.75 The additional information provided in terms of levels and cross-sections now 
indicates the relationship with the existing ground levels and adjoining development. 
The application also sets out that in order to satisfy the requirements of the LLFA it is 
necessary to raise levels in parts of the site by 500mm. This is in areas where 
groundwater levels are at their highest, predominantly around the southern boundary. 
This has also resulted in the need for retaining walls in some areas. 
 

Page 39



 

7.76  Whilst the apartment building is largely set within the north-western corner of 
the site, and near to existing garages, this is relatively close to, and orientated 
somewhat so that it faces towards the rear of properties on Cairns Road being around 
18 metres at its nearest point and 10 metres from the nearest garden boundary. Given 
the scale and relationship with these properties there is potential for some adverse 
effects on visual amenity, outlook and loss of privacy for those properties nearest to 
the site. However, it is acknowledged that the new building would not face directly 
towards the rear elevations, with any impacts resulting primarily from the western part 
of the building, which steps down towards the side elevations and therefore mitigates 
any impacts. 
 
7.77 However, an area that officers have highlighted as a concern during the course 
of the application is the very limited outlook that occupants of the apartments would 
have to the rear (north) facing elevation of the building alongside the very limited area 
of external amenity space around the building as referred to earlier. The north facing 
windows in these elevations would serve kitchen/living areas and bedrooms and would 
be sited only around 2 – 6 metres off the boundary of the site and face towards the 
existing tree planting and landscaping adjacent to and on the former railway line. This 
is not an entirely suitable layout and could result in adverse and harmful impacts on 
the outlook and general amenity of occupants of these apartments and not a well-
designed place to occupy having regard to the NLP, NPPF and NDG.  
 
7.78 In further supporting information the applicant has suggested that these trees 
are low level and do not impact on amenity, and there could be an opportunity to thin 
the trees by agreement with the landowner. It should be noted that whilst this area and 
the proximity of the apartment block to it impacts on the outlook of future occupants in 
the apartment block, the landscaping in this area also acts as a buffer between the 
site of the apartments and the existing housing to the north. This area of the former 
railway line has a width of around 20 metres. The rear elevation of the apartment block 
would be around 25.5 metres – 28.3 metres from the garden boundary of the dwelling 
at Darmel House to the north. Whilst this is considered to be generally acceptable in 
terms of separation, there could be potential effects on the amenity of occupants of 
that property if trees are removed as a result of the levels of the building, its 
scale/massing and the extent of windows on its northern elevation. The Parish Council 
has also commented that they would be strongly opposed to any removal of trees 
along this line. 
 
7.79 There are also other areas where the scheme as proposed could result in some 
harm to the amenity of existing residential properties adjoining the site. To the south-
western boundary the two-storey flats at plots 29-30 would be around 16.7 metres 
from the nearest bungalow to the rear at 2 Cairns Road. Whilst the properties are 
slightly orientated away from each other, given this distance there is still the potential 
for some loss of privacy and visual amenity for existing residents in the existing 
bungalows. 
 
7.80 The additional information provided on levels and in cross-sections, as well as 
the proposals to raise ground levels in some areas, shows that there would likely be 
effects on the amenity of existing residents to the south of the site on Malting Close. 
The site is separated from these single-storey properties with the public right of way 
that runs to the south of the site beyond an existing stone boundary wall, and the rear 
boundaries of the existing properties also feature a lower boundary wall. The two-
storey flats on plots 27-28 would be around 600mm above the level of the footpath 
and around 13.5 metres from the gable end of 3 Malting Close. Given this relationship, 

Page 40



 

and as there are no windows in the gable end of the existing property, there is not felt 
to be any significant adverse impact in that respect. 
 
7.81 However, the proposed bungalow on plot 26 would have a finished floor level 
around 1.8 metres higher than the footpath, and would be around 13.5 metres from 
the rear elevation of 3 Malting Close and 16.3 metres from 2 Malting Close. The 
submitted levels information suggests that this finished floor level would only be 
365mm lower than the eaves height of 3 Malting Close. Given this relationship it is 
considered that there would be harmful adverse impacts upon the outlook and visual 
amenity of the existing properties, albeit it is noted that the latest plans show that 
windows in the side elevations of the new bungalows have been removed, other than 
a bathroom, which would reduce overlooking. The bungalow on plot 13 would be sited 
around 900mm above the footpath and around 13.4 metres from the rear of the 
bungalow at 1 Malting Close. In this case it is acknowledged that whilst there would 
be some adverse effects on amenity, the rear boundary of 1 Malting Close currently 
features a timber fence above the existing boundary wall, which would mitigate 
potential effects on that property. 
 
7.82 The bungalows to the south-eastern corner of the site are not felt to have any 
significant impacts upon the amenity of Haining Cottage due to the separation distance 
and the intervening electric sub-station in that area, as well as the relationship to the 
north due to its gable end. Elsewhere in this part of the site the bungalows on plots 11 
– 12 and the two-storey flats on Plots 7 – 10 (which have recently been swapped with 
bungalows that were originally proposed in this area to address an amenity issue 
further north along the eastern boundary in recent amendments) would be sited 
around 10 metres from the rear boundary wall of the gardens with properties further 
east at Barclays Bank House and The Vault House with separation between the 
properties at around 34.6 metres – 38 metres. The flats on plots 7 – 10 would also be 
around 10 metres from the boundary with the properties at 1 and 2 Fountain View, 
with a distance of around 36 metres to the rear elevation of those existing properties. 
Given this relationship there are not considered to be any significant or harmful 
impacts on amenity. 
 
7.83 Looking further north along the eastern boundary of the site, the dwellings on 
plots 3 – 6 are now bungalows instead of two-storey flats as officers had raised some 
concerns around the potential impacts on the existing properties at Fountain Cottages 
to the east. The bungalows would be around 37 metres from the rear elevation of 2 
Fountain View, which is considered to result in an acceptable separation. The 
bungalows to the rear of 3 – 5 Fountain Cottages would be around 9 – 12 metres from 
this boundary and around 28 – 31 metres from the rear of the existing properties. This 
is an acceptable distance, even taking into account the change in levels sloping down 
from west to east, and is mitigated further by existing outbuildings sited on the rear 
boundary of the Fountain Cottages properties.   
 
7.84 The new properties would be sited between 24.3 - 28.4 metres from the rear 
elevations of the properties at Fountain Cottages. The rear elevations of the new 
properties would also range from between 7 – 10 metres from the rear boundaries with 
the existing dwellings. Having regard to the information provided on levels and cross-
sections, officers remain concerned that this layout would result in harm to the amenity 
of occupants of the properties at Fountain Cottages in terms of overlooking of the 
garden areas and properties, which is exacerbated by the difference in levels. 
 

Page 41



 

7.85 The two-storey properties on plots 1 – 2 would be sited around 7.7 - 9.2 metres 
from the rear boundary with 5 Fountain Cottages, and around 25.5 - 27.3 metres from 
its rear elevation. The difference in levels, with the new dwellings at a higher level, 
could exacerbate any potential impacts. However, given the layout and scale of the 
new development, as well as the proposed windows at first floor level, it is not felt that 
there would be significant or adverse impacts in that location. 
 
7.86 Whilst the proposed retail development does not form part of this application 
and is subject to assessment under application 21/03910/FUL, the introduction of such 
a use immediately adjacent to the proposed new housing may have implications on 
achieving a satisfactory level of residential amenity. Impacts arising may include noise 
and disturbance associated with a commercial use, including effects of car parking, 
delivery vehicles, lighting, hours of opening etc.  
 
7.87 In their response to the current application, Environmental Protection (EP) 
advise that there is a current objection to the retail application due to the potential 
noise impacts from external plant on housing as well as effects from external lighting. 
It may well be the case that the noise from external plant can be feasibly mitigated, 
however at this stage there is a legitimate concern that this may not be feasible with 
the proximity of the proposed housing. It is considered to be more appropriate to 
control noise at its source, and therefore the preference would be to fully assess and 
control noise within the retail application, and it is felt that this would not be a reason 
to refuse or raise an objection to the housing application on these grounds at this 
stage. EP also raise comments in relation to the further assessment of noise from 
potential use of air source heat pumps. Whilst the applicant has provided some 
information on these measures, it has not been confirmed how these would be 
incorporated into the layout and design of the apartment block. It is possible that some 
details could be conditioned, including acoustic screening of the units, however 
officers have sought further details at this stage in terms of the apartment block, 
although no further details have been submitted. 
 
7.88 The site is allocated for housing and therefore there is an expectation that some 
development will take place, which will therefore result in a change to the character of 
the area with some effects on the amenity of existing residents. The proposed amount 
and scale of development on the site with resultant changes to character are not felt 
to result in significant or adverse effects on amenity in themselves.  
 
7.89 However, as identified above there are concerns that due to the layout and form 
of development as proposed, and having regard to the finished levels and the 
relationship with adjacent properties, there would be some harm to the amenity of 
adjacent residents, particularly to the southern boundary of the site, contrary to Policy 
QOP 2 of the NLP. 
 
7.90 As referred to earlier the proposal does not result in an entirely appropriate form 
of development that would secure high standards of amenity for future occupants 
given the limited outlook for residents living in apartments on the north side of that 
building as well as in terms of the levels of amenity space within the site for users of 
that building as well as for the development as a whole. The proposal does not 
therefore achieve a high-quality design in terms of amenity and does not fully accord 
with Policy QOP 2 of the NLP or the NPPF. 
 
Sustainable Transport and Highway Safety 
 

Page 42



 

7.91 Paragraph 110 of the NPPF looks to ensure that appropriate opportunities to 
promote sustainable transport modes can be – or have been – taken up, given the 
type of development and its location; that safe and suitable access to a site can be 
achieved by all users; and that any significant impacts from development on the 
transport network, or on highway safety, can be cost effectively mitigated to an 
acceptable degree.  
 
7.92 Paragraph 111 states that development should only be prevented or refused 
on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or 
the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. Paragraph 112 
also sets out that developments should give priority first to pedestrian and cycle 
movements, both within the scheme and with neighbouring areas, and second – so 
far as possible – facilitate access to high quality public transport. It also requires 
development to address the needs of people with disabilities and reduced mobility; 
create places that are safe and attractive; allow for efficient delivery of goods, and 
access by service and emergency vehicles; and enable charging of plug-in and other 
ultra-low emission vehicles. 
 
7.93 Policies STP 3 and STP 4 of the NLP also cover matters in relation to the 
accessibility of schemes and reducing the need to travel by car and incorporate electric 
vehicle charging facilities. Policies TRA 1, TRA 2 and TRA 4 of the NLP are relevant 
to the development in terms of promoting sustainable connections, considering effects 
on the transport network and parking provision. Appendix E of the NLP sets out 
relevant parking standards for new development. 
 
7.94 Following consultation with Highways Development Management (HDM) on the 
plans as originally submitted, HDM advised that in general terms the site is within a 
sustainable location and the number of trips generated by the development will not 
have an adverse impact on the highway network. However, HDM raised issues in 
relation to the need to consider the combined traffic impacts of the proposals alongside 
the proposed retail store (21/03910/FUL).  
 
7.95 Furthermore, comments were made in relation to the proposals not 
demonstrating adequate pedestrian connectivity to local amenities, no Road Safety 
Audit (RSA) being submitted, and concerns previously raised in relation to the internal 
layout had not been addressed.  HDM advised that the submitted information was 
unacceptable in highways terms and identified that further information would be 
required, including in respect of off-site highway improvements; submission of a RSA; 
details on footway connections; revisions to the internal layout; details of electric 
vehicle charging points; further details of car and cycle parking; refuse storage and 
strategy; and construction method statement. 
 
7.96 In further comments on amended plans HDM advised that permission should 
be refused on highway safety grounds due to the lack of a completed safety review, 
and in terms of the layout, due to lack of inclusive principles and permeable design 
supporting priority to walking and cycling. HDM advised that the development would 
not reflect the NPPF’s requirement at paragraph 112 that developments should give 
priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements, both within the scheme and with 
neighbouring areas. The comments also highlighted other areas of concern in relation 
to the layout and parking provision. 
 
7.97 Following the most recent re-consultation, HDM have maintained an objection 
to the scheme. They note that details have now been submitted for pedestrian access 

Page 43



 

points onto The Maltings. These would be stepped, and details have been provided 
that the facilities can be secured by a planning condition. The number of steps/risers 
would be between 4 and 7 based on the locations shown. It should be recognised that 
steps are a barrier to movement for wheeled mobility aid users. However, the 
infrastructure can be secured in accordance with the best design principles of inclusive 
mobility. The benefits of connectivity and majority of users should be given 
consideration as much as the obvious constraints that steps will present. It is also 
stated that the plans propose a footpath across the open space / SUDS area, however 
insufficient information is presented to ascertain if this is achievable / deliverable. 
 
7.98 HDM comment that the overall visitor parking in terms of the housing 
development is not in complete adherence to local policy. The houses all have parking 
in accordance with standards. However, the apartment block should generate 20 
parking spaces and 5 visitor parking spaces. Given the density of housing apartments 
bring, visitor parking displaced would undermine the provision generally on the layout. 
The lack of parking to standards is of concern in relation to general amenity and long-
term quality of place, and as a result the proposal would be contrary to Policy TRA 4 
of the NLP in respect of this element. 
 
Flood Risk and Drainage 
 
7.99 Paragraph 167 of the NPPF states that when determining planning applications 
LPAs should ensure that flood risk is not increased elsewhere. Paragraph 169 states 
that major developments should incorporate sustainable drainage systems unless 
there is clear evidence that this would be inappropriate and should take account of 
advice from the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA). Policies WAT 1 – 4 of the NLP are 
also relevant in respect of matters of drainage, flood risk and the use of SuDS. 
 
7.100 The application site falls within Flood Zone 1. As major development on a site 
that exceeds 1 hectare, a flood risk assessment and drainage strategy (FRA) has been 
submitted and consultation has taken place with Northumbrian Water (NWL) and the 
Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) on the proposals in relation to matters of foul and 
surface water drainage. The applicant has provided additional and amended 
information following comments received from the LLFA and in particular in relation to 
issues of groundwater on the site. 
 
7.101 NWL have raised no objection, provided it is approved and carried out within 
strict accordance with the submitted FRA. NWL comment that this document reflects 
their pre-planning enquiry advice identifying how foul water flows will discharge into 
the existing public combined sewer and surface water flows will discharge into the 
existing public surface water sewer. A condition requiring the development to be 
implemented in accordance with the FRA is requested. 
 
7.102 The LLFA had initially objected to the proposals in relation to drainage and flood 
risk. This required further information in relation to discharge rates and location. In 
addition, there were no proposals for any source control SuDS and the LLFA 
requested an analysis to be carried out to assess each possible SuDS feature and 
whether it is possible and practicable to include these within the development, in line 
with the NPPF. Further to source control measures, on-site attenuation was proposed 
via a large underground tank, and the LLFA requested that ‘green SuDS’ such as an 
attenuation basin are implemented. Green SuDS have many more multi-benefits than 
an underground tank. Other matters highlighted related to water quality, calculations 
and groundwater levels. 

Page 44



 

 
7.103 The applicant has provided further information in response to the LLFA 
objection, and as referred to earlier the site layout now also proposes an attenuation 
basin in the area that was previously identified for public open space to the north-east 
corner of the site with storm crates below. The ‘residential amenity’ section above also 
made reference to the fact that there are areas of the site where levels will need to be 
raised due to the issue of groundwater. Therefore, whilst the scheme may provide 
mitigation to address matters of flood risk and drainage, there are other resultant 
effects that need to be considered as set out earlier. 
 
7.104 Following the review of the additional information the LLFA has now removed 
its objection subject to conditions. These include full details of the surface water 
drainage scheme, including the attenuation basin; adoption and maintenance of all 
SuDS features; disposal of surface water during construction; levels in relation to 
ground water; foundation detail; ground water mitigation strategy; and verification of 
drainage systems. 
 
7.105 Having regard to the above and the comments from NWL and the LLF, the 
proposal would be acceptable in relation to matters of drainage and flood risk subject 
to conditions, and would therefore be in accordance with Policies WAT 1 – 4 of the 
NLP and the NPPF. 
 
Archaeology 
 
7.106 Paragraphs 194 of the NPPF and Policy ENV 7 of the NLP require that where 
a site on which development is proposed includes, or has the potential to include, 
heritage assets with archaeological interest, local planning authorities should require 
developers to submit an appropriate desk-based assessment and, where necessary, 
a field evaluation. 
 
7.107 The Assistant County Archaeologist (ACA) has advised that the proposed 
development site retains the potential for significant unrecorded archaeological 
features and deposits across the site, potentially including remains from the prehistoric 
or Roman period onwards, and as such further site survey work was requested. In 
addition, the ACA comments that the submitted Heritage Statement and desk-based 
assessment have looked at the potential indirect impact of the development on the 
setting of the Hareshaw Ironworks Scheduled Monument and have concluded that 
there would not be an impact on the setting or significance of the monument. 
 
7.108 The ACA has considered the submitted archaeological evaluation report and 
notes that no archaeological remains of significance or any great age were revealed 
during the trial trenching. Based on the available evidence the ACA advises that no 
further archaeological work is required in connection with this application. The 
proposal would therefore be in accordance with Policy ENV 7 of the NLP and the 
NPPF in this respect. 
 
Ecology 
 
7.109 The development plan and NPPF highlight the importance of considering 
potential effects upon the biodiversity and geodiversity of an area. Section 15 of the 
NPPF relates specifically to the conservation and enhancement of the natural 
environment, including impacts on habitats and biodiversity. The NPPF makes it clear 
that aside from purely mitigating against the harm that a development may cause to 

Page 45



 

biodiversity, the definition of sustainable development includes biodiversity 
enhancement. Paragraph 174 d) states “[Planning] decisions should contribute to and 
enhance the natural and local environment by minimising impacts on and providing 
net gains for biodiversity...” and paragraph 180 d) states “...opportunities to improve 
biodiversity in and around developments should be integrated as part of their design, 
especially where this can secure measurable net gains for biodiversity”.  
 
7.110 Policy ENV 2 of the NLP is also relevant in respect of matters of biodiversity 
and geodiversity and looks to ensure proposals to minimise any adverse effects on 
habitats and species and maximise opportunities to incorporate biodiversity and 
ecological enhancements. 
 
7.111 The application is supported by ecology and tree reports, which have been 
considered by the Council’s Ecologists. They identify that the main habitats on site are 
semi-improved grassland, which is generally species-poor, and ephemeral short 
perennial vegetation creating an open mosaic habitat with the small areas of remnant 
hardstanding. No direct evidence of protected species was found on site, although the 
habitat is suitable for nesting birds, badger and reptiles. The Ecologists advise that the 
loss of the habitat would not be significant to these species in the local context and 
impacts can be avoided during construction. 
 
7.112 The Ecologists raise no objection to the application subject to conditions to 
secure appropriate mitigation and enhancement measures. In addition, advice is 
provided in relation to suitable native species that should be used in any landscaping 
proposals. On this basis the proposal would be acceptable in relation to matters of 
ecology and biodiversity, in accordance with Policy ENV 2 of the NLP and the NPPF. 
 
Ground Conditions 
 
7.113 A small part of the site to the north-western boundary falls within the higher risk 
Coal Authority referral area with the remainder falling within the lower risk Coal 
Authority standing advice area. A coal mining risk assessment has been submitted 
along with land contamination assessments and consultation has taken place with the 
Coal Authority and the Council’s Environmental Protection team (EP). 
 
7.114 Paragraph 183 of the NLPPF states that planning policies and decisions should 
ensure that a site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of ground conditions 
and any risks arising from land instability and contamination. Policy POL 1 of the NLP 
reflects this, stating development will be supported where it can be demonstrated that 
unacceptable risks from land instability and contamination will be prevent through its 
location and measures can be taken to mitigate any impacts, with suitable 
assessments to be submitted with any application. 
 
7.115 The Coal Authority has advised that the submitted information is sufficient to 
demonstrate that the application site is safe and stable for the proposed development 
and no objection is raised.  
 
7.116 Following the submission of further information relating to potential risks from 
land contamination, EP have also raised no objection and recommend that conditions 
are attached to any approval. These relate to verification of the proposed ground gas 
protection measures and verification of contamination remediation and enabling 
works. On this basis the proposal would be acceptable in relation to matters of land 
stability and contamination, in accordance with Policy POL 1 of the NLP and the NPPF. 

Page 46



 

 
Planning Obligations and Viability 
  
7.117 Paragraph 34 of the NPPF states that plans should set out the contributions 
excepted from development, including setting out the levels and types of affordable 
housing provision along with other infrastructure such as that needed for education, 
health, transport, flood and water management, green and digital infrastructure. 
Paragraph 57 of the NPPF states that planning obligations must only be sought where 
they meet all of the following tests:  
  
a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;  
b) directly related to the development; and  
c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.  
  
7.118 Policies INF 1, INF 5 and INF 6 of the NLP also set out the requirements for 
providing supporting infrastructure and open space, including through the use of 
planning obligations. 
 
7.119 Paragraph 58 of the NPPF states that “where up-to-date policies have set out 
the contributions expected from development, planning applications that comply with 
them should be assumed to be viable. It is up to the applicant to demonstrate whether 
particular circumstances justify the need for a viability assessment at the application 
stage. The weight to be given to a viability assessment is a matter for the decision 
maker, having regard to all the circumstances in the case, including whether the plan 
and the viability evidence underpinning it is up to date, and any change in site 
circumstances since the plan was brought into force”. The NPPG also provides 
relevant guidance in relation to the assessment of viability. 
 
7.120 In this case it is considered that should planning permission be granted then 
planning obligations would normally need to be secured through a Section 106 
agreement in respect of affordable housing, as well as financial contributions to open 
space and healthcare.  
 
7.121 The Education team have advised that the number of dwellings that would arise 
from this development would not be sufficient to impact on the current educational 
infrastructure of schools in the area due to their current level of surplus places. 
However, as additional children would be generated should this application be 
approved, this would assist in supporting local schools in an area of falling rolls, 
therefore no objection is raised to this application. 
  
7.122 Northumbria Healthcare Clinical Commissioning Group have been consulted 
on the application and have advised that a single payment of £33,300 is required from 
the developer to allow a smooth implementation of the required surgery capacity 
expansion. This has taken into account the basis for calculating healthcare 
contributions as set out at Appendix H3 of the NLP. 
 
7.123 Having regard to Policy INF 5 of the NLP, consideration has been given to the 
requirement for a contribution towards open space and provision for children and 
young people. This has been calculated in line with Appendix H1 of the NLP, which 
takes into account provision for amenity green space and natural and semi-natural 
green space; parks and gardens; and provision for children and young people as 
referred to in earlier sections of this report. Based on this a contribution of £48,175.86 
should be sought in this instance in relation to the parks and gardens and provision 

Page 47



 

from children and young people requirements. An additional contribution of 
£19,840.75 would also be required with regard to the amenity green space and natural 
and semi-natural element where this is not provided on site. As referred to earlier the 
scheme makes some provision to the north-eastern corner of the site alongside the 
SuDS basin, although it is questionable if this would be a suitable multi-functional 
space that would also be capable of informal recreation. It may therefore be possible 
to discount some of this element depending on how this could be used, which could 
be considered further in agreeing any contributions as part of the Section 106 should 
Member be minded to grant permission. 
 
7.124 Based on the above requirements, the applicant has submitted a viability 
appraisal, which concludes that the proposed development has a viability gap and any 
financial Section 106 planning obligations would have detrimental impacts on the 
overall financial viability of the scheme. 
 
7.125 The Council has sought an independent assessment of the submitted viability 
appraisal, and this has been reviewed by consultants having regard to the above 
contributions that are sought and with reference to advice in the NPPG. The Council’s 
consultants agree with the applicant that the full Section 106 contributions cannot be 
viably provided. However, contrary to their findings, they conclude that a reduced sum 
of £33,000 can be viably paid in this instance. At the time of preparing this report the 
applicant has not provided any further information to acknowledge if they would accept 
that contributions to this amount will be provided and secured through a Section 106 
agreement, or to justify why they cannot. 
 
7.126 On this basis, officers would advise that should Members be minded to grant 
permission for the development on the site then contributions to this amount would 
need to be secured through a Section 106 Agreement. Failure to agree to and secure 
these contributions through a Section 106 Agreement without clear evidence to justify 
why they cannot in this case would be a ground for refusal of the application as being 
contrary to Policies INF 1, INF 5 and INF 6 of the NLP and the NPPF. 
 
Equality Duty 
  
7.127 The County Council has a duty to have regard to the impact of any proposal on 
those people with characteristics protected by the Equality Act. Officers have had due 
regard to Sec 149(1) (a) and (b) of the Equality Act 2010 and considered the 
information provided by the applicant, together with the responses from consultees 
and other parties, and determined that the proposal would have no material impact on 
individuals or identifiable groups with protected characteristics. Accordingly, no 
changes to the proposal were required to make it acceptable in this regard. 
  
Crime and Disorder Act Implications 
 
7.128 These proposals have no implications in relation to crime and disorder. 
  
Human Rights Act Implications 
 
7.129 The Human Rights Act requires the County Council to take into account the 
rights of the public under the European Convention on Human Rights and prevents 
the Council from acting in a manner which is incompatible with those rights. Article 8 
of the Convention provides that there shall be respect for an individual's private life 
and home save for that interference which is in accordance with the law and necessary 

Page 48



 

in a democratic society in the interests of (inter alia) public safety and the economic 
wellbeing of the country. Article 1 of protocol 1 provides that an individual's peaceful 
enjoyment of their property shall not be interfered with save as is necessary in the 
public interest. 
 
7.130 For an interference with these rights to be justifiable the interference (and the 
means employed) needs to be proportionate to the aims sought to be realised. The 
main body of this report identifies the extent to which there is any identifiable 
interference with these rights. The Planning Considerations identified are also relevant 
in deciding whether any interference is proportionate. Case law has been decided 
which indicates that certain development does interfere with an individual's rights 
under Human Rights legislation. This application has been considered in the light of 
statute and case law and the interference is not considered to be disproportionate. 
 
7.131 Officers are also aware of Article 6, the focus of which (for the purpose of this 
decision) is the determination of an individual's civil rights and obligations. Article 6 
provides that in the determination of these rights, an individual is entitled to a fair and 
public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent and impartial tribunal. 
Article 6 has been subject to a great deal of case law. It has been decided that for 
planning matters the decision-making process as a whole, which includes the right of 
review by the High Court, complied with Article 6. 
 
8. Conclusion and Planning Balance 
 
8.1 The appraisal of this report makes clear that the principle of housing 
development on the site is considered to be acceptable having regard to the fact this 
is an allocated housing site, and as such new housing in such a location is supported 
by the NLP. Whilst some concerns have been raised in relation to the proposed type 
and tenure of housing and if this is entirely appropriate to meet identified local need, 
following consultation with ACS and the HEO, it is felt that, on balance, this would be 
acceptable in this location. 
 
8.2 Although the principle of residential development on the site is considered to 
be acceptable, the report sets out the concerns from officers that the proposals as 
submitted are not felt to be entirely appropriate in this location and do not achieve an 
acceptable or sustainable form of development in terms of matters of design and 
amenity. By virtue of the scale and massing of the apartment block, the layout and 
density of development overall, the design and use of materials, as well as the limited 
open space and landscaping throughout the development, it is considered that the 
proposal would not result in an acceptable form of design that would be well related to 
the character of the site and surrounding area given its prominent location within the 
settlement and the historic form of Bellingham.  
 
8.3 The proposal also does not result in an entirely appropriate form of 
development in terms of effects on existing residents and that would secure high 
standards of amenity for future occupants given the limited outlook and external 
amenity space for residents living in the apartment building, as well as limited areas 
of external amenity space within the development as whole.  
 
8.4 The applicant states that due to various site constraints they have not made 
significant changes to the open space provision and detail of the apartment building, 
although they consider these are appropriate to the site, its context and wider policy 

Page 49



 

objectives. If this view is not shared, it is suggested that the significant material benefits 
outweigh any potential harm caused, which the supporting information identifies as: 
 

• development of an allocated site in the recently adopted Local Plan  

• development of a longstanding vacant brownfield site (20 years vacant)  

• development of local needs affordable housing and supported accommodation 
in partnership with Karbon Homes and the Council’s adult services team  

• highly sustainable properties, using a combination of PV and air source heat 

• mix of high-quality materials reflecting local materials 

• use of SuDS dry basin design to work as dual-purpose open space  

• significant contribution to the economic sustainability of Bellingham and the 
wider area. Further increased spend in the local area, supporting local shops, 
services and facilities in Bellingham 

• access to the extensive surrounding open countryside via various public rights 
of way 

 
8.5 The applicant considers the open space and apartment building design are 
appropriate to the site, its local context and policy requirements and states that the 
extent of benefits far outweighs any possible harm, allowing the Council to achieve a 
balanced recommendation of approval for the application. They consider the material 
benefits of the proposed development are clear and significant, sufficient to 
demonstrate the proposed development is entirely appropriate for the application site. 
It will fit well within the existing fabric of Bellingham and provide a range of housing 
types which are in need within the village and supported by the Council’s housing and 
adult services teams. 
 
8.6 Although officers acknowledge that there are benefits that weigh in favour of 
the proposed development to a degree, it is not felt that these would outweigh the 
harm in this case as a result of the overall design of the scheme and effects on the 
character of the site and the surrounding area, including non-designated heritage 
assets. On that basis it is officer opinion that the application should be refused as 
being contrary to the identified policies of the NLP and the NPPF. 
 
8.7 Following consultation with HDM, it is considered that the application has been 
submitted with insufficient information to confirm that the proposed levels of parking 
associated with the proposed development will not have an adverse impact on the 
residential amenity of proposed and existing residents and in terms of highway safety. 
 
8.8 In relation to viability and planning obligations, the applicant’s viability appraisal 
has been reviewed and having regard to advice in the NPPG, the Council’s consultants 
conclude that a reduced sum of £33,000 can be viably paid in this instance. At the time 
of preparing this report the applicant has not provided any further information to 
acknowledge if they would accept that contributions to this amount will be provided 
and secured through a Section 106 agreement, or to justify why they cannot. Failure 
to agree to and secure these contributions without clear evidence to justify why they 
cannot, would also be a ground for refusal of the application as being contrary to the 
identified policies of the NLP and the NPPF. 
 
9. Recommendation 
 
That this application be REFUSED for the following reasons: 
 

Page 50



 

01. By virtue of the scale, massing and design of the proposed apartment block the 
layout, design and use of materials of the overall scheme, as well as the limited open 
space and landscaping throughout the development, it is not considered that the 
proposal would result in an acceptable and well designed scheme that would be well 
related to the character of the site and the historic form of Bellingham given its 
prominent location within the settlement, and would result in harm to the setting of 
non-designated heritage assets. Whilst there are benefits that weigh in favour of the 
proposed development, it is not felt that these would outweigh the harm in this case to 
the character of the site and the surrounding area, including non-designated heritage 
assets. The proposal would therefore be contrary to Policies STP 6, HOU 4, HOU 9, 
QOP 1, QOP 2, QOP 3, QOP 4, QOP 6 and ENV 7 of the Northumberland Local Plan 
and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
02. The proposal does not result in an appropriate form of development that would 
secure high standards of amenity for existing residents and future occupants of the 
development given the relationship between existing and proposed development with 
loss of outlook, privacy and visual amenity as well as in terms of limited outlook for 
residents living in the proposed apartment block, the lack of external amenity space 
around this building and throughout the scheme. The proposal does not therefore 
achieve an acceptable design in terms of amenity and does not therefore accord with 
Policy QOP 2 of the Northumberland Local Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
03. There is insufficient information submitted with the application to confirm that 
the proposed levels of parking associated with the proposed development will not have 
an adverse impact on the residential amenity of proposed and existing residents and 
in terms of highway safety, contrary to Policy TRA 4 of the Northumberland Local Plan. 
 
04. The application does not secure necessary planning obligations required in 
relation to contributions to open space and healthcare provision. Failure to agree to 
and secure these contributions through a Section 106 Agreement without any 
overriding evidence to demonstrate otherwise is considered to be contrary to Policies 
INF 1, INF 5 and INF 6 of the Northumberland Local Plan and the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
Background Papers: Planning application file(s) 21/03415/FUL 
  
 
 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Appeal Update Report 

Date: July 2022 

 

Planning Appeals 

Report of the Director of Planning 

Cabinet Member: Councillor CW Horncastle 

 

Purpose of report 

For Members’ information to report the progress of planning appeals.  This is a monthly 

report and relates to appeals throughout all 5 Local Area Council Planning Committee 

areas and covers appeals of Strategic Planning Committee.     

Recommendations 

To note the contents of the report in respect of the progress of planning appeals that have 

been submitted to and determined by the Planning Inspectorate. 

Link to Corporate Plan  

This report is relevant to all of the priorities included in the NCC Corporate Plan 2018-2021 

where identified within individual planning applications and appeals. 

Key issues  

Each planning application and associated appeal has its own particular set of individual 

issues and considerations that have been taken into account in their determination, which 

are set out within the individual application reports and appeal decisions. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



 

Recent Planning Appeal Decisions 

Planning Appeals Allowed (permission granted) 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

21/02984/FUL Erection of 4 bedroom dormer bungalow - land south 
of The Old Farmhouse, Ulgham 

Main issues: development in the open countryside; 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt; fails to 
demonstrate that safe ingress and access can be 
achieved from the proposed access; and no 
completed legal agreement to secure a contribution to 
the coastal mitigation service. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

Planning Appeals Split Decision 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

21/04610/LBC Listed building consent for internal and external works 
including ensuite shower room, installation 2 new 
windows to rear, replace windows/doors with double 
glazed timber units, installation of external door to 
sunroom, removal of rear porch, raised deck and 
steps down to garden – West House, Seahouses 

Main issues: harm to the listed building and no public 
benefits to outweigh the identified harm. 

Appeal dismissed and listed building consent refused 
relating to changes to internal layout at ground floor 
(excluding removal of partition between kitchen and 
sitting room), two new window openings to rear, 
replace windows/external doors with double glazed 
timber units (excluding ground floor window to south 
west elevation), installation of external door to 
sunroom, raised deck and steps down to garden, 
remodel and alter staircase and installation of air 
source heat pump. 

Appeal allowed and listed building consent allowed 
relating to demolition of rear porch, replacement of 
ground floor back door, new plumbing and electrical 
system, changes to internal layout limited to new en-
suite shower room, removal of WC cubicle, removal of 
built in cupboard, reconfiguration of existing bathroom, 
replacement of skirting boards, removal of partition 

No 

Page 54



 

and replacement of ground floor window to south west 
elevation. 

Appeal against non-determination 

Planning Appeals Dismissed (permission refused) 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

21/04384/AGTRES Prior notification for conversion of an agricultural 
building to form two dwellinghouses – building west 
of Chattlehope Farm, Catcleugh 

Main issues: the development is not considered to 

be permitted development in relation to transport and 

highway impacts. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No – 

claim 

refused 

21/03042/FUL Change of use from landscape contractors yard to 
residential, removal of existing buildings and erection 
of one no. dwellinghouse (C3 use) - Warkworth 
Landscaping Services, land north of Old Helsay, 
Warkworth 

Main issues: development in the open countryside; 
fails to support the conservation and enhancement of 
the countryside; fails to protect and enhance 
landscape character; and no suitable mitigation 
secured to address recreational disturbance to 
designated sites. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

 

Planning Casework Unit Referrals 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

None   

Page 55



 

Planning Appeals Received 

Appeals Received 

Reference No Description and address Appeal start date 
and decision 
level 

21/01136/FUL Construction of 1no detached dwelling (as 
amended) - land south of Embleton Hall and 
behind Front Street, Longframlington 

Main issues: fails to protect and enhance the 
landscape character of the village; and forms 
an incursion into the open countryside, is not 
essential and fails to support the 
conservation and enhancement of the 
countryside. 

13 December 

2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

20/03389/FUL Proposed residential development of four 
dwellings (as amended 21.12.2020) - land 
south of Centurion Way, Heddon-on-the-Wall 

Main issues: development would appear as 
an incongruous and over dominant addition 
to the street scene resulting in significant 
harm to the visual amenity of the locality. 

4 January 2022 

Committee 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Approve 

20/01457/CLEXIS As amended: Use of land to the west of 
School House Farm, Kiln Pit Hill (as outlined 
in red on amended location plan received 
16/9/21) as a Motocross Track with 
associated visitor parking, catering van, 
portable toilet, security gates and sign in 
shed. Operating times throughout the year 
(excluding every Tuesday together with 
Christmas Day, Boxing Day and New Years 
Day when it is closed) are 8am-5pm (bikes 
allowed on tracks from 10am-4pm only) with 
additional opening hours of 4pm-7pm on 
Monday, Wednesday and Friday during the 
months of May, June, July, August and 
September (amended 29/9/21) - Motorcycle 
track west of School House Farm, Kiln Pit Hill 

Main issues: the submitted evidence fails to 
demonstrate that the lawful use is as 
described in the application. 

9 February 2022 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/02183/FUL Proposed conversion of self contained house 
to create an additional 2 bedroom dwelling – 
1-2 South Road, Longhorsley 

Main issues: intensification of use of a sub-
standard access and fails to demonstrate 
appropriate car parking provision. 

16 February 2022 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

Page 56



 

21/04877/FUL Proposed garden summerhouse to rear 
garden – 62 Swansfield Park Road, Alnwick 

Main issues: significantly detracts from the 
character and appearance of the dwelling 
and immediate area; and significant harm to 
residential amenity. 

21 March 2022 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/04982/FUL Resubmission: Erection of 5no. custom self 
build homes, with associated garages, car 
parking and landscaping – land north of 30 
Longhirst Village, Longhirst 

Main issues: development in the open 
countryside; inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt; detrimental impact on the 
rural character of the site and wider 
landscape; harm to the setting and 
significance of the Conservation Area; 
insufficient information to assess 
archaeological impacts; insufficient 
information to assess impacts on protected 
species; and fails to address disposal of 
surface water. 

7 April 2022 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/02853/FUL Retrospective: first floor balcony to rear 
elevation – 28 Arkle Court, Alnwick 

Main issues: significant loss of privacy to 
neighbouring residents; and design and size 
of balcony is an overly dominant feature on 
the rear elevation. 

8 April 2022 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/04026/FUL Two storey extension protruding from 
Western side to provide 2no. additional 
bedrooms, dining area and gym – Heighley 
Wood, Morpeth 

Main issues: inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt. 

20 April 2022 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/03167/FUL Utility, store, bedroom, studio and playroom 
extension – 1 Cottingvale, Morpeth 

Main issues: significant detrimental impact 
on the character, appearance and visual 
amenity of the dwelling and surrounding 
area. 

20 April 2022 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/01668/LBC Listed Building Consent for replacement of 
sash windows throughout and replacement 
of front door – Brockburn, Monkshouse, 
Seahouses 

Main issues: harm to the listed building with 
no public benefits to outweigh the harm 

20 April 2022 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/03400/OUT Outline with all matters reserved for the 
construction of eight dwellings consisting of 8 
x Dormer Bungalows – land east of Ashcroft 

21 April 2022 

Appeal against 

Page 57



 

Guest House, Lantys Lonnen, Haltwhistle 

Main issues: development on protected open 
space, harm to designated and non-
designated heritage assets and currently 
objections and insufficient information to 
assess noise, highway safety, flood risk and 
drainage and ecological impacts. 

non-determination 

21/04426/CLEXIS Certificate of lawful development of existing 
vehicular access from the B6318 – land on 
Hadrian’s Wall remains south of Black 
Pasture Cottage, Brunton Bank, Wall 

Main issues: lack of information and 
evidence as submitted to grant certificate. 

28 April 2022 

Appeal against 

non-determination 

21/04803/FUL Resubmission: Second storey extension 
above garage and extension to front to 
increase garage. Internal alterations. - 9 
Crofts Close, Corbridge 

Main issues: fails to demonstrate that 
required parking can be provided with 
resultant impacts on amenity of neighbouring 
properties. 

9 May 2022 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21//02591/FUL  Installation of a glass pane to former door 
entrance and installation of artwork panels – 
Town Hall Office, Fenkle Street, Alnwick 

Main issues: harm to the Grade I listed 
building with no justifiable public benefits to 
outweigh the harm. 

10 May 2022 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/02592/LBC Listed building consent for installation of a 
glass pane to former door entrance and 
installation of artwork panels – Town Hall 
Office, Fenkle Street, Alnwick 

Main issues: harm to the Grade I listed 
building with no public benefits to outweigh 
the harm. 

10 May 2022 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

19/01687/FUL Change of use of land for the siting of up to 
60 static caravans, along with associated 
infrastructure and hard and soft landscaping. 
Archaeological report received 09.2.2021 
and amended site location plan received 
26.02.21 - land north west of Springwood, 
Coast View, Swarland 

Main issues: obtrusive development in the 
rural landscape that would adversely affect 
the rural setting and visual relationship 
between Swarland and wider countryside 
setting. 

1 June 2022 

Committee 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

21/03297/FUL Change of use : Retail to holiday 
accommodation on first floor with associated 

14 June 2022 

Page 58



 

internal and external alterations to the 
building – Amberley House, Stocksfield Post 
Office, Main Road, Stocksfield 

Main issues: lack of information to assess 
noise from air conditioning units and impacts 
on residential amenity; lack of information to 
assess impacts on bats or nesting birds; and 
lack of information to demonstrate adequate 
car parking provision can be achieved.  

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

Recent Enforcement Appeal Decisions 

Enforcement Appeals Allowed 

Reference No Description and address Award of 
costs? 

None   

 

Enforcement Appeals Dismissed 

Reference No Description and address Award of 
costs? 

None   

Enforcement Appeals Received 

Appeals Received 

Reference No Description and address Appeal start date  

19/00170/ENDEVT Construction of an access track – School 

House Farm, Kiln Pit Hill, Consett 

5 January 2022 

20/01383/ENDEVT Material change of use of the land from use 

for agriculture to a vehicle parking area – 

School House Farm, Kiln Pit Hill, Consett 

Appeal against Enforcement Notice and 

linked with appeal submitted against refusal 

of 20/01457/CLEXIS (see above). 

9 February 2022 

Page 59



 

22/00022/NOTICE Unauthorised dwelling – Horsley Banks 

Farm, Horsley 

6 April 2022 

Hearing date to be 

confirmed. 

22/00023/NOTICE Unauthorised stable buildings – Horsley 

Banks Farm, Horsley 

6 April 2022 

Hearing date to be 

confirmed. 

18/01525/ENDEVT Change of use of the land for the stationing 

of 2 caravans including a linking structure for 

residential purposes - School House Farm, 

Kiln Pit Hill, Consett 

29 April 2022 

18/01525/ENDEVT Erection of a building used to house parrots 

and other animals; the erection of a 

corrugated steel barn; the erection of 2 

timber structures to accommodate birds; and 

the construction of a hardstanding area - 

School House Farm, Kiln Pit Hill, Consett 

29 April 2022 

 

Inquiry and Hearing Dates 

Reference No Description and address Inquiry/hearing 
date and 
decision level 

20/04423/OUT Outline application seeking approval for 

access for construction of two storey 58 bed 

care home and associated but physically 

separate single storey 12 bedroom specialist 

unit with associated parking and hard and 

soft landscaping – Essendene, Kenilworth 

Road, Ashington 

Main issues: would prevent the reintroduction 

of facilities in connection to the passenger 

rail services on the Ashington 

Northumberland Line; and lack of information 

concerning off-site highway works, 

manoeuvrability within the site, parking 

provision and conflict between all modes of 

transport and pedestrians.  

Hearing: 28 July 

2022 

Committee 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

Page 60



 

 

Implications 

Policy Decisions on appeals may affect future 
interpretation of policy and influence policy reviews 

Finance and value for money There may be financial implications where costs are 
awarded by an Inspector or where Public Inquiries 
are arranged to determine appeals 

Legal It is expected that Legal Services will be instructed 
where Public Inquiries are arranged to determine 
appeals 

Procurement None 

Human resources None 

Property None 

Equalities 

(Impact Assessment attached?)  

❏ Yes 

✓ No 

❏ N/a  
 

Planning applications and appeals are considered 
having regard to the Equality Act 2010 

Risk assessment None 

Crime and disorder 
As set out in individual reports and decisions 

Customer consideration None 

Carbon reduction Each application/appeal may have an impact on the 
local environment and have been assessed 
accordingly 

Wards All where relevant to application site relating to the 
appeal 

Background papers 

Planning applications and appeal decisions as identified within the report. 

Report author and contact details 

Elizabeth Sinnamon 
Development Service Manager 
01670 625542 
Elizabeth.Sinnamon@northumberland.gov.uk 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Tynedale Local Area Council

Members Local Improvement Schemes

2021 - 2025

Progress Report - 1st June 2022

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 12



P
age 64



Job Scheme Description Estimated Actual Current Proposed Comments

Number Cost Cost Status Completion

2013/2017

HO166254
Contribution towards car park improvements in Hexham

£5,508.00 £5,508.00 Accounts TBA
Contribution not paid yet

2018/2019 

HO186499 Traffic calming (Speed reduction measures and residents parking scheme) 
U8290 Gibson Place, Hexham

£3,000.00 £3,016.74 CANCELLED CANCELLED Design brief issued. Not viable due unadopted 
section of road.

2019 / 2020

HO196625 Traffic calming (Residents Parking Scheme) U8290 Giles Place, Hexham £9,500.00 £9,217.37 completed completed Works complete.

HO196651 Installation of new street lighting column, U8293 Cuddy's Lane Footpath, 
Hexham

£2,300.00 £2,300.00 Delivery TBA Works order issued to Street Lighting and 
Electrical Team

2020 / 2021

HO206769 Contribution towards refurbishment of Acomb Pavilion £20,000.00 £20,000.00 completed completed Contribution to Acomb Parish Council made on 6 
December 2021.

HO206787 Contribution towards construction of new footpaths at Acomb MUGA £3,000.00 £3,000.00 Accounts TBA Contribution towards HO220022 sent to Accounts 
Payable 30/05/2022

2021 / 2022

HO210041
Contribution towards purchase of a new van for the Hextol Foundation, 
Hexham £3,000.00 £3,000.00 completed completed

Contribution to the Hextol Foundation made on 24 
January 2022 - Joint scheme with Cllr's. Homer 
and Kennedy - Total contribution £8,000.00.

HO210065

Contribution towards the cost of refurbishing the lift at Hexham Community 
Centre £3,000.00 £3,000.00 completed completed

Contribution to Hexham and Tynedale Community 
Trust made on 11 November 2021 - Joint scheme 
with Cllr's Homer & Kennedy, total contribution 
£9,000.00. 

2022 / 2023

HO220022 Contribution towards installing outdoor exercise equipment at Acomb 
playing field

£5,000.00 £5,000.00 Accounts TBA Approved. Joint contribution with HO206787. Sent 
to Accounts Payable 30/05/2022

Cllr. T. Cessford Members Schemes 2021 to 2025
Tynedale - Hexham Central with Acomb

Report Date 01/05/2022

P
age 65



Balance carried over from 2021 £9,000.00  £      21,000.00 

Total Budget May 2021 - April 2023 £30,000.00

Actual Cost + Committed Cost to Date £11,000.00    Approved Scheme Budget

Total Estimated Cost £11,000.00   Proposed  Scheme

      Completed Scheme / Final Cost

Balance Remaining to 31/3/23  £     19,000.00 

KEY

P
age 66



Job Scheme Description Estimated Actual Current Proposed Comments
Number Cost Cost Status Completion

2017/2018 

HO186445 Traffic calming (Parking restrictions) New Ridley Rd / Batt House Rd,Jnt 
and Alexandra Terrace, Stocksfield

£2,600.00 £2,600.00 completed completed H Work done 11/02/19

2018/2019 

HO186483 Traffic calming (Introduction of speed reduction measures) C258 New 
Ridley Village - Phase 1

£20,000.00 £11,590.48 completed completed Scheme completed.

2019 / 2020

HO196635 Traffic calming (Proposed speed reduction measures) C258 New Ridley 
Road, Stocksfield - Phase 1

£3,000.00 £5,899.54 completed completed Scheme completed.

2020 / 2021

HO206775 Traffic calming (Safety improvements) C273 Broomley - Phase 1 £6,500.00 £6,500.00 completed completed Design brief issued. Works completed. Costs to 
be finalised

HO206951 Contribution towards construction of new pavilion at Stocksfield Cricket 
Club

£4,464.79 £4,464.79 completed completed Contribution to Stocksfield Cricket Club made on 
2 August 2021.

HO206950 Contribution towards purchase and installation of new heritage trail notice 
boards at Riding Mill

£2,000.00 £2,000.00 completed completed Contribution made 23 April 2021.

2021 / 2022

2021SEP7
Contribution to Queen's Jubilee Platinum event

£2,000.00 £2,000.00 completed completed
Payment to Stocksfield Community Association - 
Payment made directly by Finance Department 
on 18 October 2021.

2021SEP10 Eco Schools/Sustainability Project £2,500.00 £2,500.00 completed completed Payment to Broomley First School - Payment 
made directly by Finance Department on 24

2022 / 2023
Traffic Calming (2x new handrails on footways, one between Baliol Road 
and the A695 in Stocksfield, the other on Eastgate Bank in Mickley) £2,000.00 £2,000.00

Awaiting form

Cllr. P.A.M. Dale Members Schemes 2021 to 2025
Tynedale - Stocksfield and Broomhaugh

Report Date 01/05/2022

P
age 67



Balance carried over from 2021 £10,500.00  £      19,500.00 

Total Budget May 2021 - April 2023 £30,000.00

Actual Cost + Committed Cost to Date £6,500.00    Approved Scheme Budget

Total Estimated Cost £6,500.00   Proposed  Scheme

      Completed Scheme / Final Cost

Balance Remaining to 31/3/23  £      23,500.00 

KEY

P
age 68



Job Scheme Description Estimated Actual Current Proposed Comments
Number Cost Cost Status Completion

2019 / 2020

HO196627
Contribution towards footpath slurry sealing resurfacing works, U8293 
Moonfield/U8294 White Cross, Hexham £10,000.00 £10,000.00 Delivery TBA

Cllr Homer - Western Area Highways scheme.

2021 / 2022

HO210039

Contribution towards purchase of a new van for the Hextol Foundation, 
Hexham £2,000.00 £2,000.00 completed completed

Cllr Homer - Contribution to the Hextol Foundation 
made on 24 January 2022 - Joint scheme with 
Cllr's. Cessford and  Kennedy - Total contribution 
£8,000.00.

HO210064

Contribution towards the cost of refurbishing the lift at Hexham Community 
Centre £3,000.00 £3,000.00 completed completed

Cllr Homer - Contribution to Hexham and Tynedale 
Community Trust made on 14 October 2021 - 
Joint scheme with Cllr's. Cessford and Kennedy, 
total contribution £9,000.00. 

2021/108 Purchase and installation of 1No. interactive speed sign, A695 Corbridge 
Road, Hexham

£0.00 £0.00 Awaiting estimate for new sign.

HO220001 Contribution towards purchase of 2 Fridges and 2 Freezers for the Hexham 
Community Grocery

£3,500.00 £3,500.00 completed completed Contribution completed 04/05/2022

2022 / 2023

HO220009 Contribution to Cycling Minds CIC for Equipment for Cycling Repairs and 
Training

£3,958.00 £3,958.00 Accounts TBA Sent to Accounts Payable 10/05/2022

2022SEP31 Contribution to the start up costs of Tyne Green Junior Parkrun £2,500.00 £2,500.00 Accounts TBA Not paid yet

Cllr. S. H. Fairless-Aitken Members Schemes 2021 to 2025
Tynedale - Hexham East

Report Date 01/05/2022

P
age 69



Balance carried over from 2021 £10,000.00  £      20,000.00 

Total Budget May 2021 - April 2023 £30,000.00

Actual Cost + Committed Cost to Date £14,958.00    Approved Scheme Budget

Total Estimated Cost £14,958.00   Proposed  Scheme

      Completed Scheme / Final Cost

Balance Remaining to 31/3/23  £      15,042.00 

KEY

P
age 70



Job Scheme Description Estimated Actual Current Proposed Comments
Number Cost Cost Status Completion

2020 / 2021

HO206996 Contribution towards construction of new play area at Allendale £9,271.32 £9,271.32 Accounts TBA Contribution to Karbon Homes not made yet.

2021 / 2022

HO210051 Traffic calming (Improved road safety measures) B6295 Main Street, 
Catton - Phase 1

£2,000.00 £2,000.00 Design TBA Design brief issued.

HO210054 Contribution towards Stage 2 refurbishment of Slaley Commemoration Hall £4,000.00 £4,000.00 completed completed Contribution to Slaley Commemoration Hall made 
on 6 October 2021.

HO210069 Contribution towards the purchase and installation of new electric panel 
heaters at The Medway Building, Allendale 

£3,821.42 £3,821.42 completed completed Contribution to Higher Ground Allendale made on 6 
December 2021.

2022 / 2023

2022SEP21
Contribution towards coaches for Ukraine refugees

£1,000.00 £1,000.00 completed completed
Paid 20/04/2022

Cllr. C.W. Horncastle Members Schemes 2021 to 2025
Tynedale - South Tynedale

Report Date 01/05/2022

P
age 71



Balance carried over from 2021 £5,178.58  £      24,821.42 

Total Budget May 2021 - April 2023 £30,000.00

Actual Cost + Committed Cost to Date £10,821.42    Approved Scheme Budget

Total Estimated Cost £10,821.42    Proposed  Scheme

      Completed Scheme / Final Cost

Balance Remaining to 31/3/23  £      19,178.58 

KEY

P
age 72



Job Scheme Description Estimated Actual Current Proposed Comments
Number Cost Cost Status Completion

2021 / 2022

HO210059 Contribution towards purchase of new ride on mower for Jubilee Football 
Club, Haltwhistle

£5,000.00 £5,000.00 completed completed Contribution to Jubilee Football Club made on 29 
September 2021.

HO220002 Contribution towards installation of CCTV at Haltwhistle School £3,000.00 £3,000.00 completed completed Sent to Accounts Payable 22/04/2022. Contribution 
completed

2022 / 2023

Cllr. J.I. Hutchinson Members Schemes 2021 to 2025
Tynedale - Haltwhistle

Report Date 01/05/2022

P
age 73



Balance carried over from 2021 £10,000.00  £      20,000.00 

Total Budget May 2021 - April 2023 £30,000.00

Actual Cost + Committed Cost to Date £8,000.00    Approved Scheme Budget

Total Estimated Cost £8,000.00    Proposed  Scheme

      Completed Scheme / Final Cost

Balance Remaining to 31/3/23  £      22,000.00 

KEY

P
age 74



Job Scheme Description Estimated Actual Current Proposed Comments
Number Cost Cost Status Completion

2019 / 2020

HO196721 Contribution towards refurbishment of Bensons Memorial, Hexham £15,040.00 £15,040.00 complete complete Property Services Scheme.

2020 / 2021

HO206986 Contribution towards purchase and installation of new interactive  electronic 
smart board for Gateway into the Community, Hexham

£2,758.80 £2,758.80 complete complete Contribution to Gateway into the Community 
made on 17 August 2021.

2021 / 2022

HO210036
Contribution towards purchase of a new van for the Hextol Foundation, 
Hexham £3,000.00 £3,000.00 complete complete

Contribution to the Hextol Foundation made on 
21 January 2022 - Joint scheme with Cllr's. 
Cessford and Homer - Total contribution 

HO210046

Contribution towards the cost of refurbishing the lift at Hexham Community 
Centre £3,000.00 £3,000.00 complete complete

Contribution to Hexham and Tynedale 
Community Trust made on 20 September 2021 - 
Joint scheme with Cllr's. Cessford and Homer, 
total contribution £9,000.00.

2021/066 Purchase and installation of new interactive speed sign at Causey Hill 
Road/St Paul's Road Junction, Hexham

£0.00 £0.00 Awaiting estimates.

2022 / 2023

Cllr. D. Kennedy  Members Schemes 2021 to 2025
Tynedale - Hexham West

Report Date 01/05/2022

P
age 75



Balance carried over from 2021 £9,000.00  £      21,000.00 

Total Budget May 2021 - April 2023 £30,000.00

Actual Cost + Committed Cost to Date £6,000.00    Approved Scheme Budget

Total Estimated Cost £6,000.00    Proposed  Scheme

      Completed Scheme / Final Cost

Balance Remaining to 31/3/23  £     24,000.00 

KEY

P
age 76



Job Scheme Description Estimated Actual Current Proposed Comments

Number Cost Cost Status Completion

2019 / 2020

HO196558 Traffic calming (Speed reduction measures and new signage) C218 and 
C215 Gunnerton Village - Phase 1

£19,100.00 £19,100.00 Delivery TBA Cllr Gibson - Scheme issued for delivery, budget 
increased by £17,100.00.

2019/126 Purchase and installation of new interactive speed sign and two posts, 
C213 Birtley Village

£0.00 £0.00 ON HOLD Cllr Gibson - Awaiting estimates for new sign and 
posts.

2020 / 2021

HO206878 Installation of  new street lighting columns at Church Lane and The Grove, 
Wark

`` £3,141.00 Delivery TBA Cllr Gibson - Street Lighting and Electrical Team 
scheme.

2021 / 2022

HO210074 Purchase and installation of 1No. new interactive speed sign at north end of 
Wall Village

£4,305.00 £4,305.00 completed completed Scheme completed.

2022 / 2023
Contribution for benches

Cllr. N.J. Morphet  Members Schemes 2021 to 2025
Tynedale - Humshaugh

Report Date 01/05/2022

P
age 77



Balance carried over from 2021 £10,695.00  £      19,305.00 

Total Budget May 2021 - April 2023 £30,000.00

Actual Cost + Committed Cost to Date £4,305.00    Approved Scheme Budget

Total Estimated Cost £4,305.00   Proposed  Scheme

      Completed Scheme / Final Cost

Balance Remaining to 31/3/23  £     25,695.00 

KEY

P
age 78



Job Scheme Description Estimated Actual Current Proposed Comments
Number Cost Cost Status Completion

2020 / 2021

HO206958 Contribution towards construction of new Active Mile Track at Corbridge 
Middle School

£6,000.00 £6,000.00 Accounts TBA Contribution to Corbridge Middle School not 
made yet.

2021 / 2022

HO210029 Contribution towards footpath resurfacing, south side B6530 Main Street, 
Corbridge

£3,500.00 £3,273.40 completed completed Western Area Highways Scheme.

2022 / 2023

Cllr. N. Oliver Members Schemes 2021 to 2025
Tynedale - Corbridge

Report Date 01/05/2022

P
age 79



Balance carried over from 2021 £11,726.60  £      18,273.40 

Total Budget May 2021 - April 2023 £30,000.00

Actual Cost + Committed Cost to Date £3,273.40    Approved Scheme Budget

Total Estimated Cost £3,500.00    Proposed  Scheme

      Completed Scheme / Final Cost

Balance Remaining to 31/3/23  £     26,726.60 

KEY

P
age 80



Job Scheme Description Estimated Actual Current Proposed Comments
Number Cost Cost Status Completion

2019 / 2020

HO196552 Contribution to Northumbria Police for crime prevention equipment £9,500.00 £9,500.00 Accounts TBA Contribution to Northumbria Police not yet made.

HO196680 Contribution towards carriageway widening, C201 West Woodburn to 
Bellingham Road

£10,000.00 £10,000.00 Accounts TBA Contribution to Western Area Highways scheme not 
made yet.

2020 / 2021

HO206883 Traffic calming (Parking improvements including restrictions) High 
Street/Manchester Square, Bellingham - Phase 1

£9,695.64 £9,695.64 Design TBA Design brief issued - budget increased by 
£1,695.64.

HO206938 Contribution towards installation of new information signage, A68 Carter 
Bar

£2,500.00 £2,500.00 Design TBA Sent to Accounts Payable 30/05/2022

2021 / 2022

2022 / 2023

Cllr. J.R. Riddle Members Schemes 2021 to 2025
Tynedale - Bellingham

Report Date 01/05/2022

P
age 81



Balance carried over from 2021 £15,000.00  £       15,000.00 

Total Budget May 2021 - April 2023 £30,000.00

Actual Cost + Committed Cost to Date £0.00    Approved Scheme Budget

Total Estimated Cost £0.00    Proposed  Scheme

      Completed Scheme / Final Cost

Balance Remaining to 31/3/23  £      30,000.00 

KEY

P
age 82



Job Scheme Description Estimated Actual Current Proposed Comments

Number Cost Cost Status Completion

2020 / 2021

HO206739
Traffic calming (Proposed 20mph speed limit/zone and new signage) 
U8280 Castlefield's Drive, Prudhoe - Phase 1  £13,516.91 £13,516.91 completed completed

Cllr Stow - Design brief issued - Joint scheme with 
Cllr. Stewart. Made Order 24/01/22 TROM_216. 
Completed costs to finalized

HO206984 Contribution towards purchase and installation of new barrier at Fairview 
Car Park, Prudhoe

£10,000.00 £10,000.00 completed completed Cllr Stow - Western Area Highways scheme 
completed.

2021 / 2022

2021SEP13 Contribution to Queen's Jubilee Platinum event £3,000.00 £3,000.00 completed completed Payment to Prudhoe Community Partnership - 
made on 3 March 2022.

2022 / 2023

HO220011 Contribution towards The Prudhoe Community Hub £4,510.00 £4,510.00 Accounts TBA Sent to Accounts Payable 16/05/2022

Cllr. A. Scott  Members Schemes 2021 to 2025
Tynedale - Prudhoe North

Report Date 01/05/2022

P
age 83



Balance carried over from 2021 £12,000.00  £      18,000.00 

Total Budget May 2021 - April 2023 £30,000.00

Actual Cost + Committed Cost to Date £7,510.00    Approved Scheme Budget

Total Estimated Cost £7,510.00   Proposed  Scheme

      Completed Scheme / Final Cost

Balance Remaining to 31/3/23  £     22,490.00 

KEY

P
age 84



Job Scheme Description Estimated Actual Current Proposed Comments
Number Cost Cost Status Completion

2017/2018 

HO176298 Traffic calming (Priority Signage and markings) B6318 Gilsland- Samson 
Inn RR Bridge - Phase 1

£7,000.00 £9,033.15 completed completed Scheme completed

2020 / 2021

HO206726 Traffic calming (Proposed safety improvements) U8054 Access Road to 
Shafto Trust Academy, Haydon Bridge - Phase 1

£6,000.00 £7,727.44 completed completed Scheme completed

HO206935 Contribution towards footpath resurfacing, Redburn to Bardon Mill £3,000.00 £2,926.40 completed completed Western Area Highways scheme.

2021 / 2022

HO210002 Contribution towards purchase of new goalposts for Haydon Bridge United 
Football Club

£3,462.00 £3,462.00 complete complete Contribution to Haydon Bridge United Football 
Club made on 24 June 2021.

HO210040 Traffic calming (Proposed road narrow measures and new signage) C284 
Woodhall Mill Road and B6318 Samson Inn Railway Bridge, Gilsland

£3,000.00 £3,000.00 Design TBA Design brief issued 

2022 / 2023

2022SEP27 Contribution to the installation of a disabled ramp £1,000.00 £1,000.00 Accounts TBA

Cllr. A. Sharp Members Schemes 2021 to 2025
Tynedale - Haydon and Hadrian

Report Date 01/05/2022

P
age 85



Balance carried over from 2021 £8,538.00  £      21,462.00 

Total Budget May 2021 - April 2023 £30,000.00

Actual Cost + Committed Cost to Date £7,462.00    Approved Scheme Budget

Total Estimated Cost £7,462.00    Proposed  Scheme

      Completed Scheme / Final Cost

Balance Remaining to 31/3/23  £     22,538.00 

KEY

P
age 86



Job Scheme Description Estimated Actual Current Proposed Comments

Number Cost Cost Status Completion

2020 / 2021

HO206738

Traffic calming (Proposed 20mph speed limit/zone and new signage) 
U8280 Castlefield's Drive, Prudhoe - Phase 1  £16,075.68 £16,075.68 completed completed

Design brief issued - Joint scheme with Cllr. Stow - 
budget increased by £14,075.68. Made Order 
24/01/22 TROM_216. Completed costs to be 
finalized

2021 / 2022

HO210033 Contribution towards purchase of a new large TV learning monitor and 
computer storage/charging cabinet for Adderlane Academy, Prudhoe

£2,017.91 £2,017.91 completed completed Contribution to Wise Academis made on 10 
August 2021.

HO210034 Contribution towards the Falcon Capital Works Scheme, Prudhoe £3,878.00 £3,878.00 completed completed Contribution to Prudhoe Town Council madse on 
11 February 2022.

HO210045 Contribution towards construction of new sports room and installation of a 
new security alarm system at Prudhoe Town Football Club 

£2,400.00 £2,400.00 completed completed Contribution to Prudhoe Town Football Club made 
on 20 September 2021.

HO210081 Installation of 1No. new street lighting column at 2-8 West Wylam Drive, 
Prudhoe

£3,000.00 £3,000.00 completed completed Street Lighting & Electrical Team Scheme. 
Installed 28/02/2022. Costs to be finalised.

2022 / 2023

Cllr. G. Stewart Members Schemes 2021 to 2025
Tynedale - Prudhoe South

Report Date 01/05/2022

P
age 87



Balance carried over from 2021 £3,704.09  £      26,295.91 

Total Budget May 2021 - April 2023 £30,000.00

Actual Cost + Committed Cost to Date £11,295.91    Approved Scheme Budget

Total Estimated Cost £11,295.91    Proposed  Scheme

      Completed Scheme / Final Cost

Balance Remaining to 31/3/23  £     18,704.09 

KEY

P
age 88



Job Scheme Description Estimated Actual Current Proposed Comments

Number Cost Cost Status Completion

2021 / 2022

HO210030 Contribution towards construction of a new wooden building at The Hearth 
Centre, Horsley

£2,000.00 £2,000.00 Accounts TBA Contribution to The Hearth Charity not made yet.

HO210067 Contribution towards the purchase and installation of 6No. bike stands and 
new paving at St. Oswin's Church Parish Hall, Wylam

£3,400.00 £3,400.00 completed completed Contribution to Wylam St. Oswin's P. C. C. made 
on 12 November 2021.

HO210097 Traffic calming (Proposed double yellow line parking restrictions) Nunnykirk 
Close & Horsley Road Junction, Ovingham 

£4,000.00 £4,000.00 Design Design Design Brief issued

2022 / 2023
Contribution to Wylam 1st School for new playground Sent form 25/04/2022

Cllr. H.R. Waddell  Members Schemes 2021 to 2025
Tynedale - Bywell
Report Date 01/05/2022

P
age 89



Balance carried over from 2021 £5,600.00  £      24,400.00 

Total Budget May 2021 - April 2023 £30,000.00

Actual Cost + Committed Cost to Date £9,400.00    Approved Scheme Budget

Total Estimated Cost £9,400.00   Proposed  Scheme

      Completed Scheme / Final Cost

Balance Remaining to 31/3/23  £     20,600.00 

KEY

P
age 90



Number

A = Proposed Schemes 1

Number Original Estimated 
Cost

Current Estimate - 
Actual Cost Totals

Total Budget May 2021 - Apr 2023 £390,000.00

Total Approved schemes 28 £332,083.47 £332,908.99

Total Uncommitted Balance  £57,091.01  

Highway Scheme 13 £98,705.00 £99,530.52

External Contributions 13 £198,214.83 £198,214.83

26 £296,919.83 £297,745.35

Tynedale - Summary

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
 

12 July 2022 Page 1 

 
 

 
 
 

Northumberland County Council  
 

Tynedale Local Area Council  
 

Work Programme 2022 - 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Nichola Turnbull: 01670 622617 - Nichola.Turnbull@northumberland.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 13



   
 

12 July 2022 Page 2 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
(1) To enhance good governance in the area and ensure that the Council’s policies take account of the needs and aspirations of 

local communities and do not discriminate unfairly between  the different Areas. 
(2) To advise the Cabinet on budget priorities and expenditure within the Area. 
(3) To consider, develop and influence policy and strategy development of the Council, its arms-length organisations, and other 

relevant bodies, to ensure that they meet local requirements and facilitate efficient and transparent decision making. 
(4) To receive information, consider and comment on matters associated with service delivery including those undertaken in 

partnership agencies, affecting the local area to ensure that they meet local requirements, including matters relating to 
community safety, anti-social behaviour and environmental crime. 

(5) To consider and refer to Cabinet any issues from a local community perspective with emerging Neighbourhood Plans within their 
area, and consider local planning applications as per the planning delegation scheme. 

(6) To consider and recommend adjustments to budget priorities in relation to Local Transport Plan issues within their area, and to 
make decisions in relation to devolved capital highway maintenance allocations. 

(7) To engage, through the appropriate networks, with all key stakeholders from the public, private, voluntary and community sectors 
to facilitate the delivery of area priorities.  This will include undertaking regular liaison with parish and town councils. 

(8) To inform, consult and engage local communities in accordance with Council policy and guidance, through the appropriate 
networks. 

(9) To, as appropriate, respond or refer with recommendations to local petitions and councillor calls for action. 
(10) To make certain appointments to outside bodies as agreed by Council. 
(11) To determine applications for grant aid from the Community Chest, either through Panels for individual Local Area Councils, o r 

through the Panel of Local Area Council Chairs for countywide applications. 
(12) To refer and receive appropriate issues for consideration to or from other Council Committees, and as appropriate invite Portfolio 

Holders to attend a meeting if an item in their area of responsibility is to be discussed. 
(13) To exercise the following functions within their area:- 

(a) the Council’s functions in relation to the survey, definition, maintenance, diversion, stopping up and creation of public rights of 
way. 

(b) the Council’s functions as the Commons Registration Authority for common land and town/village greens in Northumberland. 
(c) the Council’s functions in relation to the preparation  and maintenance of the Rights of Way Improvement Plan. 
(d) the Council’s functions in relation to the Northumberland National Park and County Joint Local Access Forum (Local Access 

Forums (England) Regulations 2007. 
(e) the Council’s role in encouraging wider access for all to the County’s network of public rights of way and other recreational 

routes. 
 
  

P
age 94



   
 

12 July 2022 Page 3 

ISSUES TO BE SCHEDULED/CONSIDERED 
 
Standard items updates:  Planning Applications (monthly), public question time (bimonthly, not at planning only meetings), petitions 
(bimonthly, not at planning only meetings), members’ local improvement schemes (quarterly) 
 
To be listed:  Highways Maintenance 
 

 

Northumberland County Council 
Tynedale Local Area Council 

Work Programme 2022-23 
 

 

12 July 2022 
 
 • Planning 

• Local Services Update 

• Broadband Update 

 
 
9 August 2022 
 

 • Planning and Rights of Way 
 

 
13 September 2022 
 

 • Planning 

• Local Services Update 

• Other items to be confirmed 
 

 
11 October 2022 
 
 • Planning and Rights of Way 

P
age 95



   
 

12 July 2022 Page 4 

 
 
15 November 2022 
 

 • Planning 

• Local Services Update 

• Other items to be confirmed 
 

 
13 December 2022 
 

 • Planning and Rights of Way 
 

 
10 January 2022 
 
 • Planning 

• Local Services Update 

• Other items to be confirmed 

 
 
14 February 2022 
 
 • Planning and Rights of Way 

 
 
14 March 2022 
 

 • Planning 

• Local Services Update 

• Other items to be confirmed 
 

 
11 April 2022 
 

P
age 96



   
 

12 July 2022 Page 5 

 • Planning and Rights of Way 
 

 
9 May 2023 
 
 • Planning 

• Local Services Update 

• Other items to be confirmed 
 

 
  

P
age 97



   
 

12 July 2022 Page 6 

 

 

Northumberland County Council 
Tynedale Local Area Council Monitoring Report 2022-2023 

Ref Date Report Decision Updates (if any) 

1 10 May 2022 Police and Crime 
Commissioner  

RESOLVED that the information be noted.  

2 10 May 2022 Petition: Dangerous 
Road (Peth Head, 
Hexham) 

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted 
and the following proposed actions be supported: 
  
a) Introduction of additional repeater signs and 

20mph roundels (road markings) to be provided at 
either end of Peth Head. 

b) A speed survey be arranged to assess actual 
vehicle speeds. Depending on the outcomes of 
the survey, consideration be given to whether any 
further measures would be appropriate. 

 

3 10 May 2022 Tyne Valley 
Community Rail 
Partnership 

RESOLVED that the presentation be received and 
that the comments be noted. 

 

P
age 98



   
 

12 July 2022 Page 7 

4 10 May 2022 Outside Bodies RESOLVED that the following list of appointments 
be confirmed: 

Groundwork North East - Land of Oak and Iron 
Project Board – G Stewart   
Haltwhistle Partnership Limited - A Sharp   
Haltwhistle Swimming & Leisure Centre Man. Cttee - 
A Sharp   
Hexham TORCH Centre Management Committee - 
T Cessford   
Prudhoe Community Partnership – A Scott   
Queens Hall Arts Trust – SH Fairless-Aitken  
Sport Tynedale – N Oliver   
Tyne Valley Community Rail Partnership Board – H 
Waddell   
 

 

5 10 May 2022 Members Local 
Improvement 
Schemes – 
Progress Report  

RESOLVED that the report be noted.   

     

 
NT 28.06.22 

P
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED AT PLANNING MEETINGS
	3 MINUTES
	5 DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS
	6 21/03415/FUL
	7 PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE
	Planning Appeals
	Purpose of report
	Recommendations
	Link to Corporate Plan
	Key issues

	Recent Planning Appeal Decisions
	Planning Appeals Allowed (permission granted)
	Planning Appeals Split Decision
	Planning Appeals Dismissed (permission refused)
	Planning Casework Unit Referrals

	Planning Appeals Received
	Appeals Received

	Recent Enforcement Appeal Decisions
	Enforcement Appeals Allowed
	Enforcement Appeals Dismissed

	Enforcement Appeals Received
	Appeals Received

	Inquiry and Hearing Dates
	Implications
	Background papers
	Report author and contact details


	12 MEMBERS LOCAL IMPROVEMENT SCHEMES - PROGRESS REPORT
	13 LOCAL AREA COUNCIL WORK PROGRAMME

